Tha Municipality of

Powaszan

The Municipality of Powassan
AGENDA
Regular Council meeting ta be held
Tuesday, August 2, 2022, at 7:00 p.m, Powassan Council Chambers

1. CALL TO ORDER & ACKNOWLEDGE FIRST PEOPLES AND TRADITIONAL LAND

“We respectfully acknowledge that we are on the traditional territory of the Anishinaabe Peoples, in the Robinson-
Huron and Williams Treaties areas. We wish to acknowledge the long history of First Nations and Métis Peoples in
Ontario and show respect to the neighbouring Indigenous communities. We offer our gratitude for their care for,
and teachings about, our earth and our relations. May we continue to honour these teachings”

2. ROLLCALL
3. DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. PRESENTATIONS:
5.1 Reverend David Lock
5.2 Jim Bruce, Powassan Voodoos
5.3 Bakertilly — Jessica Dion, Financial Statements 2021

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
6.1 Regular Council meeting of July 19, 2022

7. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

8. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APPOINTED BOARDS

8.1 North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority draft minutes of june 22, 2022
9. STAFF ‘

9.1 Permit — Noise by-law, B. Mousseau

9.2 Planning Report — Loxton, 146 Osborne Street, Planscape
10. BY-LAWS

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
11.1 Social Media Policy

12. NEW BUSINESS
12.1 Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems Quarterly Operations Report
12.2 ICIP Green Stream — Transfer Payment Agreement — Queens Avenue Watermain Rehabilitation

13. CORRESPONDENCE

14. ADDENDUM

15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

16. NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MEETINGS




17. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
18. CLOSED SESSION

18.1  Adoption of Closed Session minutes of July 19, 2022

18.2  Proposed Disposition or acquisition of land-Section 239{2){c) and under 6{1}{c) of the
Procedural Bylaw-a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of fand for municipal
or local bard purposes.

18.3 identifiable Individuals-Section 239(2)(b} of the Municipal Act and under 6(1}{b}) of the
Procedural Bylaw- matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees

18.4  [dentifiabie Individual-Section 239(2)}{b) of the Municipal Act and under 6{1)(b} of the
Procedural Bylaw- matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees '

18.5  Labour Relations -Section 239(2){d) of the Municipal Act and-under 6{1)(d) of the
Procedural Bylaw- matters regarding labour relations or employee negotiations.

18.6  Labour Relations -Section 239(2){d) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(d) of the
Procedural Bylaw- matters regarding labour relations or employee negotiations.

18,7  Labour Relations -Section 239(2){d) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(d) of the
Procedural Bylaw- matters regarding labour relations or employee negotiations.

19. MOTION TO ADJOURN
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Cotporation of the Municipality of Powassan (the
"Municipality”) are the responsibility of the Municipality's management and have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standaids established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada as descnbed in Note | to the consolidated
financial statements,

The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarﬂy involves the uge of estimates based on
management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the curent accountmg petiod cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Municipality’s management maintains a system of mternal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assefs are safeguarded, transactions are properly ‘authorized and recorded in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards -established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canadd, and re]:able financial information is available on a timely
basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management, Council meets with management and the external audltor to review the consolidated financial
statements and discuss any significant financial reportmg or mtemal control matters pnor to their approval
of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have ‘been audited by Baker Tilly SNT LLP, independent external
auditor appointed by the Mummpahty The accompanymg Independent Auditor's Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their. exammation and their opinion on the Municipality's consolidated financial
statements.

Treasurer
August 2, 2022



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Municipality of
Powassan, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as  at
December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash
flows, and change in net debt for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
as at December 31, 2021, and its consolidated results of operations and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Municipality in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Other Matter

The financial statements of The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan for the year ended
December 31, 2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion of those
statements on September 7, 2021,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of thése consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accountmg Standards and for such internal
confrol as management deterimines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is reéponsible for assessing the
Municipality’s ablllt}' to confinue as a going concem, disclosing, as apphcable matters related to
going concemn and using the going concern basis of accountmg unless management either intends to
liquidate the Municipality or to cease operatlons o has no reahstlc alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsxbie for overseemg the Municipality's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are fo, cbtain reasc')n'abl_e assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not d guarantee that an audit ‘conducted in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards will’ always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or érror and are considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated finahcial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticist throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or etror, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecling a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order o design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality’s intetnal control,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reagonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether- a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s repoit
to the related discloswres in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of owr auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to continue as a going
concem.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit, We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion. :

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our aundit.

North Bay, Ountario CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS,
August 2, 2022 LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2021

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (note 4)
Short-term investments (note 5)
Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable (note 6)
Morlgage receivable (note 7)

Liabilities

Temporary borrowing (note 8)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics (note 9)
Deterred revenues - other (note 10)

Deferred revenues - obligatory reserve fund (note 11)

Municipal debt (note 12) <
Employee future benefits payable (note 13)
Landfill closure and post-closure (note 14) -
Contractual obligations (note 18) ‘

Net Debt

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets (note 15)
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Accumulated Surplus (note 16)

Contingencies (note 17)

Commitments {note 18)

Approved by:

2021 2020
$ 128,782 $ 158,561
742,351 537,768
833,636 1,250,766
1,236,739 306,881

47320 -
2,988,828 2,253,976
500,000 . 1,218,877
696,030 1,234,083
9,239 2,878
289,302 299,782
6,413,623 3,996,987
197,841 17,887
258,027 202,307
_. 188,187 228.324
.. 8,552,249 7,201,125
(5,563,421) (4,947,149)
19,958,278 18,850,893
101,134 62,586
87,123 69,733
20,146,535 18,983,212

$ 14,583,114

$ 14,036,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

-1-



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

For The Year Ended Pecember 31, 2021

Revenues
Net taxation
User charges
Government grants and transfers - Provincial
Government grants and transfers - Federal
Other

Total revenues

Expenses
General government
Protection services
Transportation services
Environmental services
Health services
Social and family services
Recreation and cultural services
Planning and development

Total expenses
Annual deficit before other
Other
Government grants and transfers related
to capital - Provincial
Government grants and transfers related
to capital - Federal
Annual surplus (deficit)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

Accumnlated surplus, end of year

2021 2020

Budget Actual Actuyal

(Unaudited)

$ 3,485,651 $ 3,522,901 $ 3,318,324

1,181,215 1,088,166 789,034
1,278,104 1,349,340 1,396,063
9,448 26,917 -
256972 966,935 733,996
6,211,390 6,954,259 6,238,317
1,103,495 2,264,871 1,122,238
1,374,349 1,158,146 1,128,756
2,074,423 1,960,564 2,044,855
941,095 1,075,846 966,859
420,504 431,099 491,573
144,235 144,235 .
1,159,514 932,026 1,212,993
150,750 143,494 149,950
7,368,365 8,110,281 7,117,224
(1,156,975)  (1,156,022) (878,907)
488,718 450,605 -
1,309,608 1,252,468 351,708
1,798,326 1,703,073 351,708
641,351 547,051 (527,199)
14,036,063 14,036,063  14.563.262

$ 14,677,414 $ 14,583,114 $ 14,036,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

Operating transactions
Annual surplus (deficit)

Cash and cash equivalents provided by (applied to)
Non-cash items:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in non-cash working capital balances
Decrease {increase) in taxes receivable
Decrease (increase) in accounis receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Tncrease in deferred revenues - other
Decrease in deferred revenues - obligatory reserve fund
Increase in employee future benefits payable
Increase in landfill closure and post-closure
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in inventories
Cash and cash equivalents provided by operating fransactions

Investing transactions
Change in short-term investmenis
Change in mortgage receivable _

Cash and cash equivalents provided by (applied to) investing
transactions

Capital transactions - _
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Cash and cash equivalents applied to capital transactions

Financing transactions - .
Temporary borrowing repaid
Municipal debt issued
Municipal debt repaid
Contractual obligations repaid
Cash and cash equivalents provided by (applied to)
financing transactions

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

3.

2021 2020
$ 547,051 $ (527,199)
1,120,467 1,137,330
652,798 -
417,130 (18,283)
(929,858) 177,320
(538,053) 96,447

6,361 67,200
(10,480) -
179,954 -
55,720 1,000
(38,548) (763)
__ (17,390) (14,043)
71,445,152 919,009
(204,583) 192,896
(47,320) -
(251,903) 192,896
(2,880,650) (563,570)
(2,880,650) (563.570)
(718,877) (4771,256)
2,795,047 -
(378,411) (210,621)
(40,137) (38.751)
1,657,622 (726,628)
(29,779) (371,189)
158,561 529,750
$ 128,782 § 158,561




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021 2021 2020
Budpet Actusl Actuial
(Unaudited)

Annual surplus 3 641,351 $ 547,051 § (527,199)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,133,570 1,120,467 1,137,330
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 652,798 -
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,483,100) (2,880,650) (563,570)
Change in prepaid expenses - (38,548) (763)
Change in inventories - (17,390) {14,043)

Decrease (increase) in net debt (708,179 (616,272) 31,755

Net debt, beginning of year (4,947,149 (4,947,149) (4,978,904)

Net debt, end of year § (5,655,328) - $(5,563,421) $(4,947,149)




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

(a)

Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements of the Municipality are the representation of management
prepared in accordance with accounting policies recommended by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Since precise determination of many
assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of periodic consolidated
financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates and approximations. These have been
made using careful judgement.

Basis of Consolidation

(i)

(i)

(v)

Consolidated Entities

These consolidated financial statements reflect the findncial assets, IiaBilifiés non-financial
assets, accumulated surplus, revenues and expenses of the Municipality and include the
activities of all committees of Council.

Allinterfund assets and liabilities and revenues anid expenses have been eliminated.
Joint Local Boards

Activities in joint local boards are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method. Under this method, the Mummpahtys proporhonate share of joint local board
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are included in the accounts. The following joint
local boards are proportionately consolidated:

Powassan aid District Union Library (60%)

All interﬁmd assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses have been eliminated.
Non-Consolidated Entities

The following joint local boards are not consolidated:

North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit

District of Parry Sound Services Administration Board

Eastholme Home for the Aged

Accounting for School Board Transactions

The Municipality is required to collect and remit education support levies in respect of
residential and other properties on behalf of the area school boards. The Municipality has no
jurisdiction or control over the school boards operations. Therefore, taxation, other
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations of the school boards

are not reflected in the accumulated surplus of these consolidated financial statements.

5.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accounting

®

(ii) |

(iif)

(iv)

)

Accrual Basis

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of
receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Municipality's policy is to disclose bank balances under cash and cash equivalents,
including bank overdrafis with balances that fluctuate frequently from being positive to
overdrawn and term deposits with maturities of three months from the date of acquisition or
less or those that can be readily convertible to cash.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues represent user charges and fees that have been collected for which the
related services have yet to be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the
services are performed.

Employee Future Benefits

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS) which is a multi-employer contributory defined benefit program with contributions
expensed as incurred.

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure
The estimated costs to close and maintain solid waste landfill sites are based on estimated

future expenses in current dollars, adjusted for estimated inflation, and are charged to
operations as the landfill site’s capacity is used.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

1. Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)
(b) Basis of Accounting (Continued)
(vi) Segmented Information

The Municipality reports its segmented information on functional areas and programs in its
consolidated financial statements similar to reporting reflected as part of the Ontario Financial
Information Return. These functional areas represent segments for the Municipality:

General Government . -

General government is comprised of Council, administration, and Ontario Property
Assessment. : :

Protection Services

Protection is comprised of police, fire and .‘othcr protective services.

Transportation Services '

Transportation services are responmble for road mamtenance culverts, bridges, winter
control and streetlights. :

Environmental Services

Environmental services include water supply and d1str1but10n wastewater treatment, waste
and recycling services. :

Health Services :

Health services include public healthi services, land ambulance and cemetery services.

Social and Family Services

Social and family services include social assistance, long-term care, social housing and child
care services.

Recreation and Cultural Services

Recreation and cultural services include parks and recreation, recreation facilities, culture and
libraries.
Planning and Development

Planning and development manages development for residential and business interests as well
as services related to the Municipality’s economic development programs.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(b) Basis of Accounting (Continued)
(vii) Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets
during the year, together with the annual surplus, provides the Consolidated Change in Net
Debt for the year.

i) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capitai assets are amortized on a siraight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 10 years
Buildings 10 to 50 years
Vehicles 5to 15 years
Machinery and equipment 10 to 25 years
Office equipment, computer hardware and software 3 to 10 years
Linear assets (roads, bridges and structures) 10 to 50 years
Water and sewer 15 to 100 years

A full year of amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and no amortization is
charged in the year of disposal.

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

it} Inventories

Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost.
iii) Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance for a good or service not yet

received. The expense is recognized once the goods have been received or the services
have been performed.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accounting (Continued)

(viii) Taxation and Other Revenues

(ix)

Property tax billings are prepared by the Municipality based on assessment rolls issued by the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation ("MPACY") and in accordance with the
provisions of the Municipal Act, 2001. Tax rates are established annually by Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local $ervices and amounts the Municipality is
required to collect on behalf of the Province of Ontano in respect of education taxes.

A normal part of the assessment process is the issue of supplementary agsessment rolls which
provide updated information with respect to changes in properly assessment. Once a
supplementary assessment roll is received, the Mummpahty determines the taxes applicable
and renders supplementary tax billings. Taxation revenues are recorded at the time tax
billings are issued. o -

Assessment and the related property taxes are subject 10 appeal. Tax adjustments as a result
of appeals are recorded when the result of the appeal process is known or based on
management's best estimates,

The Municipality is e'ntit‘léd to collect interest and penalties on overduc taxes. These
revenues are recorded in the period the interest and penalties are levied.

User charges are recognized in the period in which the revenue relates.

Other income is recognized as revenue when earned. Fines and fees are recognized as
revenue when collected,

Government Grants and Transfers

Government grants and transfers are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which events giving rise to the transfer occurs, providing the fransfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made,
except when and to the extent that stipulations associated with the transfer give rise to a
liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a
liability. The transfer revenue is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and
accumulated surplus as the stipulations giving rise to the liabilities are settled.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

1.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accounting (Continued)

(x) Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions.
These estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best information and Judgment
and may differ significantly from actual results,

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus COVID-19 a global
pandemic. This contagious disease outbreak and measures introduced at various levels of
government to curtail the spread of the virus, such as travel restrictions, closures of non-
essential municipal and private operations, imposition of quarantines and social distancing has
adversely affected workforces, customers, economies and financial markets globally,
potentially leading to an economic downturn. It has also disrupted the normal operations of
many entities. This outbreak could adversely impact the results of the Municipality's
operations. The extend of the impact of this outbreak and related containment measures on
the Municipality's operations cannot be reliably estimated at this time.

Measurement Uncertainty

Certain items recognized in the consolidated financial statements are subject to measurement
uncertainty.  The recognized amounts of such items are based on the Municipality’s best
information and judgment.

* The amounts recorded for landfill closure and post-closure depend on estimates of usage,
remaining life and capacity. The provision for future closure and post-closure costs also
depends on estimates of such costs.

*  The amounts recorded for amortization and opening costs of tangible capital assets are based
on estimates of useful life, residual values and valuation rates.

By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and the effect on the
consolidated financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be significant.
Future Accounting Pronouncements

These standards and amendments were not effective in the year ended December 31, 2021, and
have therefore not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements, Management

is currently assessing the impact of the following accounting standards updates on the future
consolidated financial statements,

-10-



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

3. Fuiure Accounting Pronouncements {Continued)

Section PS 3450 - Financial Instruments, establishes recognition, measurement, and disclosure
requirements for derivative and non-derivative financial instruments for public sector entities. The
standard requires fair value measurement of derivatives and portfolio investments that are equity
instruments quoted in an active market, All other non-derivative financial instruments will be
measured at cost or amortized cost. A government can elect to record other financial assets or
liabilities on a fair value basis, if they manage and evaluate the asset and liability groups on that
basis, Unrealized gains and losses are represented in the new $tatément of re-measurement gains
and losses. New requirements clarify when financial liabilities can be de-recogmzed Disclosure of
the nature and extent of risks arising from holding. ﬁnanmal instruments is also required. This
section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Aprli 1,2022. Early adoption is permitted.

Section PS 1201 - Financial Statement Presentation, was issued in June 2011 This standard
requires entitics to present a new statement of re-measurement gams and losses separate from the
statement of operations. This new statement mcludes unrealized gain$ and losses arising from re-
measurement of financial instruments and 1tr::ms denommated in forelgn currencies and any other
comprehensive income that arises when a- govemment includes the results of government business
enterprises and partnerships. This section is effective for ﬁscai years beginning on or after April 1,
2022 and applies when P8 2601 and PS 3450 are adopted.

Section P8 2601 - Foreign Currency Translation, was issued in June 2011 and replaces the existing
Section PS 2600. This standard has been revised to ensure consistency with the financial
instruments standard. The standard requires that non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currency that are included in the fair value category are adjusted to reflect the exchange rate at the
financial statement date. Unrealized exchange gains and losses are presented in the new statement
of re-measurement gains and losses. This settion is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
April 1, 2022. Eaily adoption is pe1m1ttcd

Section PS 3280 - Asset Retlrement Obligations, was issued in August 2018,  This standard
establishes standaids on how to account for and report a liability for asset retirement obligations. It
defines which activities would be included in a liability for retirement of a tangible capital assef,
establishes when to recognize and how to measure a liability for an asset retirement obligation and
provides the related financial statement presentation and disclosure requirements. This section is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. Early adoption is permitted.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents § 766,780 ¥ 339,592
Outstanding cheques {637.998) (181.031)

3 128,782 $ 158561

-11-




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

5. Short-Term Investments

Short-term investraents consist of a guaranteed investment certificate bearing interest at 0.53%,
(2020 - 1.92%) maturing May 16, 2022 (2020 - May 13, 2021).

6. Accounts Receivable

2021 2020
Canada $ 024916 3 -
Province of Ontario : 314,395 75,543
School Boards 5,689 -
User charges . 123,060 89,000
Other 168,679 142 338

$ 1,236,739 $ 306,881
7. Mortgage Receivable

The Municipality has a mortgage receivable, repayable in monthly instalments of $518, including
interest of 4.50%, maturing April 13; 2031,

8. Temporary Borrowing
The Municipality has authorized credit facilities totalling $1,600,000, which is unsecured. As at

December 31, 2021, the Municipality has utilized $500,000 (2020 - $1,218,877). The interest is
calculated at the bank's prime lending rate.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2021 2020
Canada $ 9,334 $ -
Province of Ontario 1,506 5,148
School Boards - 758,075
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 631,104 470,860
Accrued interest 53,686 -

$ 696,030 $ 1,234,083

-12-



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidafed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

10. Deferred Revenues - Other

Amounts  Recognized
Balance as at received as revenues Balance as at

December during the  during the December
30, 2020 year year 31, 2021
Ontario Community Infrastructure 3 - 3 50,049 § 40,810 § 9,239
Fund _
Other 2,878 - 2,878 -

Total Deferred Revenues - Other $ 2,878 $ . 50,049 $§ 43,688 § 9,239

11. Deferred Revenues - Obligatory Reserve Fund

A 1equ1rcment of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada Public Sector Accounting
Handbook, is that obligatory reserve funds be reported as deferred réveriue. This requirement is in
place as legislation and external agreements restrict how these funds ma¥ be used and under certain

circumstances these funds may possibly be refunded. The balance in the obligatory reserve funds of
the Municipality are summarized below:

Amounts  Recognized

Balance as at réceived  asrevenues DBalance as at
December during the  during the December
30, 2020  year year 31,2021
Federal gas tax | $ 209782 $ 430,858 $ 441,338 $ 289,302
Total Deferred Revenues -
Obligatory Reserve Fund $ 299,782 $ 430,858 $ 441338 §$ 289,302
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The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

12. Municipal Debt

2021

2020

Term loan, repayable in blended monthly instalments
of $1,122, plus interest at the fixed rate of 3.69%,
maturing August 14, 2023 3 21,951

Term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$1,460, plus interest at the bank's prime {ending
rate plus 1.00%, maturing September 14, 2023 30,672

Term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$1,427, plus interest at the bank's prime lending
rate plus 0.5%, maturing September 30, 2024 339,526

Term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$3,751, including interest at the fixed rate of
3.90%, maturing in October 16, 2024 117,520

Debenture loan, repayable in semi-annual instalments
of $86,958 including interest at the fixed rate of
3.88%, maturing October 15, 2025 638,658

Term loan, repayable in monthly iﬁstalments of
$1,647, plus interest at the the bank's prime lending
rate plus 1.00%, maturing May 22, 2026 87,281

Term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$2,500, plus interest at the bank's prime lending
rate plus 1.00%, maturing July 7, 2026 137,500

Term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$5,952, plus intetest at the the bank's prime lending
rate plus 0.50%, maturing September 30, 2026 488,096

Debenture loan, repayable in semi-annual instalments
of $58,400, including interest at the fixed rate of
2.21%, maturing August 16, 2036 1,484,290

Debenture loan, repayable in semi-annual instalments
of $89,409 including interest at the fixed rate of
3.61%, maturing September 4, 2048 3,068,129

$ 6,413,623

$ 35415

789,897

3,171,675

$ 3,996,987
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The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

12. Municipal Debt (Continued)

The Municipality has an authorized revolving line of credit facility totalling $500,000 to finance the
purchase of long-term assets. As at December 31, 2021, the Municipality has utilized $52,623
(2020 - $83,6006). The interest is calculated at the bank's prime lending rate plus 1.00% or a fixed
rate for the balance of the term. Withdrawals are included in municipal debt.

Principal instalments required to be paid over the next five years aré as follows:

2022 $ 514,076
2023 s 516,609
2024 : 784,882 -
2025 - 456,838
2026 3 399,594
Thereafter 3,741,624
Total : . $ 6,413,623

13. Employee Future Benefits Payable

The Municipality provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future periods,

as follows:

2021 2020
Accumulated sick leave entitlements ‘ $ 123,444 3 -
Vacation payable . 74,397 17,887

$ 197,841 5 17,887

-15-



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

14, Landfill Closure and Post-Closure

Under environmental law, there is a requirement for closure and post-closure maintenance of solid
waste landfill sites. This requirement is to be provided for over the estimated remaining life of the
landfill site based on usage. The reported liability is based on estimates and assumptions with
respect to events extending over an extended period using the best information available to
management. Future events may result in significant changes to the estimated total expenses,
capacity used or total capacity and the estimated liability, and would be recognized prospectively,
as a change in estimate, when applicable. '

The current landfiil site is expected to reach capacity in approximately 2162, The main components
of the landfill closure plan are final capping using selected specific layers of earthen materials based
on an engineered cap design and implementation of a drainage management plan. The post-closure
maintenance requirements will involve cap maintenance, installation of monitoring  wells,
groundwater monitoring, inspections and annual repotts,

The estimated liability for this maintenance is the present value of future cash flows associated with
closure and post-closure costs discounted using the Municipality's estimated average borrowing
rate of 3.75% (2020 - 3.75%). The change in lability is recorded based on the capacity of the
landfill used to date. The recorded lability is $258,027 (2020 - $202,307) based on a total
estimated liability in the future of $3,183,193 (2020 - $3,183,193), leaving an amount of
$2,925,166 (2020 - $2,980,886) to be recognized over the remaining expected life of the landfill
site. The liability is currently unfunded and is expected to be funded through budget allocations to
a landfill reserve over the remaining life of the landfill.

The estimated remaining capacity of the -site is approximately 94.7% (2020 - 95.3%) of its
estimated capacity or 727,400 (2020 - 732,400) cubic meters, and its remaining life is
approximately 141 years (2020 - 142 years). Post-closure care is estimated to continue for a period
of approximately 25 years.

-16-
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The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

16. Accumulated Surplus

Surplus

Invested in tangible capital assets
General (see note (a) below)
Unfunded Liabilities
Municipal debt
Landfill closure and post-closure
Employee future benefits payable
Contractual obligations
Total surplus

Reserves

~ Special purpose reserves
Water and sewer systems
Fire equipment
Office, recreation and other

Public works equipment and infrastructure

Powassan lions park and pool

Trout Creek fire department and community

centre
Garbage and landfill
Eides principal
Gravel pt closure
Water contingency
250 Clark Street building
Curling club building
Sportsplex
Library
Total reserves

Accumulated Surplus

-18-

2021

2020

$ 19,958,278

3 18,850,893

(1,028,178) (3,062,786)
(6,413,623) (3,996,987)
(258;027) (202,307)
(197,841) (17,887)
(188,187) (228.324)
11,872,422 11,342,602
1,592,911 1,664,341
- 56,406
9,664 15,664
718,667 440,137

- 35,000

- 10,000
99,701 98,701
50,000 50,000
61,925 57,425
130,432 124,932

- 100,000

- 8,445

- 31,910

47,392 -

2,710,692 2,693 461
$ 14,583,114  $ 14,036,063




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

16. Municipal Fund Balances at the End of the Year (Continued)

(a) General Deficit:

The general deficit of $(1,028,178) (2020 - $(3,062,786)) at the end of the year is comprised

of the following:
. 2021 2020

Opening balance $ (3,062,786) $(3,269,729)
Annual surplus 543,047 (541,927)
Transfer from (to) reserves ‘ (17,231) 390,870
Net change in tangible capital assets - (1,107,385) 573,760
Increase (decrease) in unfunded liabilities ' 2,612,173 (230,488)
Powassan and District Union Public Libracy -

surplus ) .. 4,004 14,728
Closing balance $(1,028,178) $ (3,062,786)

17. Contingencies

Legal Mattexs

The Municipality is involved in cettain legal matters and litigations, the outcomes of which are not
presently determinable. The loss, if any, from these contingencies will be accounted for in the
petiods in which the matters are resolved.

Council is of the opinion that it is unlikely that any liability, to the extent not provided by insurance
or otherwise, would be material in relation to the Municipality's consolidated financial position.
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The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidafed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

18.

19.

Commitments
Contractual Obligations

During 2003, the Municipality passed a resolution committing to pay $1,392 per year for 20 years
for the Sudbury Regional Hospital and the Northeastern Ontario Regional Cancer Centre
redevelopment projects. During 2006, the Municipality passed a resolution comumitting to pay
$37,359 per year for 20 years for the North Bay Regional Health Centre Hospital capital project,
Formal agreements were been executed and payments commenced in 2004 and 2007 respectively.
The remaining balance of these commitments as at December 31, 2021 is $188,187 (2020 -
$228,324).

Commitments

The Municipality entered into a five-year contractual agreement from September 30, 2019 to
September 30, 2024 for recycling collection. The mininum commitment for recycling collection is
$120,864 per year.

The Municipality entered into a ten-year contractual agreement with Ontario Clean Water Agency
(OCWA) from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2027 for management, operation and maintenance
of the municipal water system. The minimum commitment for OCWA services is $£172,980 per
year.

The Municipality entered into a four-year agreement with the Ontario Provincial Police from
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2023 to provide police services. The minimum commitment for
police services is $487,200 per year.

Operations of School Beards

Further to note 1(a)(iv), the taxation, other revenues, and expenses of the school boards are
comprised of the following;

2021 2020
Taxation and user charges g 767,723 $ 765,093
Total amounts received or receivable 767,723 765,093
Requisitions 767,723 765,093

$ - $ -

-20-



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

20,

21,

22,

Pension Agreements

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of all qualifying members of its staff. The
plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by
the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. The OMERS Administration
Coxporation Board of Directors, repxesenting plan members and employers, is responsible for
overseeing the management of the pension plan, mcludmg investment of the assefs and
administration of the benefits. OMERS provides pension services to approximately 541,000 active
and retired members and approximately 1,000 employers.

Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of OMERS Primary Pension Plan
(‘the Plan’) by comparing the actuarial value of invested asséts to the estimatéd present value of all
pension benefits that members have earned to date. On Deceniber 31, 2021, the estimated accrued
pension obligation for all members of the Plan was $119,342 million (2020 $111,820 million). The
Plan had an actuarial value of net assets at that date 6f $116,211 million (2020 - $108 609 million)
indicating an actuarial deficit of $3,131 m.llhon (2020 -$3,211 mlihon) The Plan is a multi-
employer plan, therefore any pension plan surpluses of deficits are a joint responsibility of Ontario
municipal organizations and their employees, As a result, the Municipality does not recognize any
share of the OMERS pension surplug or defigit.

The amount contributed by the Municipality to OMERS for 2021 was $130,873 ‘(2020 $i24,918)
for current services and is included as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surpius

On January 1, 2021 the yearly maximum pension earnings increased to $61,600 from $58,700 in
2020. The contributions are calculated at a rate of 9.0% (2020 - 9.0%) for amounts up to the
yearly maximum pension earnirigs stated above and at a rate of 14.6% (2020 - 14.6%) for amounts
above the yearly maximum pension ¢arings.

Budget Figures

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from the
budget approved by Council. The budget approved by Council is developed in accordance with the
provincially mandated funding model for municipalities and is used to manage program spending
within the guidelines of the funding model. Given differences between the funding model and
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector
Accounting Board, the budget figures presented have been adjusted to conform with the basis of
accounting that is used to prepare the consolidated financial statements, The budget figures are
unaudited.

Comparative Figures

The presentation of certain accounts of the previous year has been changed to conform with the
presentation adopted for the current year.
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The Municipality of

Powaszan

Council Meeting
Tuesday, July 19, 2022, at 7:00 pm
Powassan Council Chambers

Present: Peter Mclsaac, Mayor
Randy Hall, Deputy Mayor
Debbie Piekarski, Councillor

Absent,
With regrets: Dave Britton, Councillor
Markus Wand, Councillor

Staff: Allison Quinn, Acting Deputy Clerk
Terry Lang, IT

Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof:
P. Mclsaac Item 12.2 Employer listed in item

2022-244 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the agenda of the Regular Council Meeting of July 19, 2022, be approved. Carried

2022-245 Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the minutes of the Regular meeting of Council of July 5, 2022, be adopted. Carried

2022-246 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the minutes from the Golden Sunshine Municipal Non-Profit Housing Corporation
committee, dated May 17, 2022, be received. Carried

2022-247 Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the minutes from the Powassan Police Services Board (PSB) meeting, dated June 27,
2022, be received. Carried

2022-248 ‘Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board’s Chief
Administrative Officer’s Report dated June 2022, be received. Carried

2022-249 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
The Municipality of Powassan Council will formally acknowledge the commitent to move
forward on developing a multi-use trail system through the town of Powassan that can be
utilized by the local OFFSC so the Main Trail can once again go through Powassan. Carried

2022-250 Mayor Mclsaac left the Chair; Deputy Mayor Hall took the Chair.
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
The Municipality of Powassan hereby wishes to acquire Fairview Lanc from the Ministry of
Transportation (MTO) as highlighted in the provided overview. The terms of transfer,
including availability for disposal, fees, and legal description of the lands will be determined
in consultation with the Ministry. Carried

o |fs 2 /27
AGENDA C; . / '
ITEM #







2022-251

2022-252

2022-253

2022-254

2022-255

2022-256

Mayor MclIsaac returned to the Chair.
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the Municipality of Powassan Social Media Policy, be received.

AND FURTHER that the proposed policy be adopted. Deferred
Moved by: R. Hall Secended by: D. Piekarski

That the correspondence from the Shadow Minister for rural Economic Development and
Rural Broadband Strategy regarding federal funding for rural communities, be received. ~ Carried

Moved by: D. Pickarski Seconded by: R. Hall

That the accounts payable listing reports of July 14, 2022, in the total amount of $264,853.73,

be approved for payment. Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That Council now adjourns to closed session at 8:04 p.m. to discuss:

18.1 Identifiable Individuals — Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of the
Procedural By-Law — matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or local
board employees

18.2 Identifiable Individual — Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of

the Procedural By-Law - matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees. '

18.3 Identifiable Individual — Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of

the Procedural By-Law — matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees.

18.4 Identifiable Individual - Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of

the Procedural By-Law — matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees.

18.5 Identifiable Individual — Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of

the Procedural By-Law — matters regarding an identifiable individual, including municipal or

local board employees. Carried
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall

That Council now reconvenes to regular session at 9:30 p.m. Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That Council now adjourns at 9:30 p.m. . Carried

Mayor Clerk






NORTH BAY-MATTAWA CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
MINUTES

of the

SIXTH meeting of the North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority held as an in person
meeting at 5:30 p.m. on June 22, 2022, in the NBMCA’s Natural Classroom, 15 Janey Avenue,
North Bay, Ontario.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

MEMBERS ABSENT:

STAFF PRESENT:
Brian Tayler, CAQ, Secretary-Treasurer (out
Chitra Gowda, CAQ, Secretary-Treasurer (incoming)
Helen Cunningham, Manager, Finance and Human Resour

1.
Jane Lagassie read a statement acknowledging Indigenous and Treaty Lands.

2.

Bonfield, Township of -
Caliander, Municipality of -
Calvin, Township of -
Chisholm, Township gf
East Ferris, Municj
Mattawan, Muaf
North Bay, Cif§
North Bay, City &
Papineau — Cameron,
Powassan, Municipalityg

Mattawa, Town of
North Bay, City of

Rebecca Morrow, Administrative Assistant

Sue Buckle, Manager, Communications and Outreach

Jane Lagassie
lrene Smit
Sandy Cross
Nunzio Scarfone
Rick Champagne
Michelle Lahaye
Chris Mayne

Dave Mendicino (Vice-Chair)

Shelley Belanger
Dave Britton {Chair)}

Troy Storms, Manager, Lands & Stewardship

Valerie Murphy, Regulations Officer

Acknowledgement of Indigenous Traditional and Treaty Lands

Welcome to our new CAO Chitra Gowda

The Chair and members welcomed our new CAQ, Chitra Gowda. Chitra thanked members for
the warm welcome and is looking forward to working with everyone. The members presented
Chitra with a welcome hasket, which Chitra received with thanks.

.; s o]

DATE OF

COUNCIL MTG

AGENDA g’ . '
TEM K _




3. Approval of the Agenda

The Chair extended regrets on behalf of Loren Mick and Ed Valenti. After discussion the
following resolution was presented:

Resolution No, 54-22, Mayne-Champagne

THAT the agenda be approved as presented.

Carried Unanimously

4, Delegations

No delegations.

5. Declaration of
None declared.

6. Adoption of Previous utes n
After discussion the following resoluti 5

Resolution No, 55-22, Belanger -Lahaye

THAT the minutes from the meeting held May 25,

Carried Unanimously

7. Friends of Lavase Portages

Sue Buckle informed the members that the Friends of Lavase had acknowledged the NBMCA
with a plaque in recognition of the NBMCA’s 50% Anniversary. Sue invited Chris Mayne, a
member of the Friends of Lavase to present the plaque. Thanks was extended from Chair
Britton to the Friends of the Lavase. After discussion photos were taken to commemorate the
special occasion.

3. 50" Anniversary -Watershed Heros
Sue Buckle presented the Communications and Outreach Report dated june 16, 2002. After

which Sue welcomed Jesse Russell of Canadore College to the meeting. Jesse made a
presentation to members on environmentally sustainable projects and initiatives that Canadore



College have been working on. These initiatives were also presented at Environmental Summit
that some NBMCA staff attended on May 31, 2022 and Junhe 1, 2022 . After discussion, the
members thanked lesse for the presentation and presented him with recognition as a NBMCA
Watershed Hero.

9, Conservation Authorities Act Update
Chitra Gowda presented a power point presentation to members on the changes to the
Conservation Authorities Act including tasks to be completed with timelines. After discussion

the members thanked Chitra for the presentation.

10. Communications and Outreach Report

Sue Buckle presented membgiilith the Communication and Outreach Report dated June 16,

thanked Sue for her presentation and report and the

United Nations Sustainable Developmgh
2031, and;
the environment and our watershed as a NBMCA_
THAT the report dated June 16, 2022 be received and appended to tt

utes of this meeting.

Carried Unanimously

1. Section 28 Approvals

The members reviewed the report. After discussion, the following resolution was presented:

Resolution No, 57-22, -Smit-Scarfone

THAT the Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and
Watercourses June 16, 2022 members report is received and appended to the minutes of this
meeting.

Carried Unanimously




12, On-Site Sewage System Program

Brian Tayler presented to members the report from Robin Allen, Septic Program Manager dated
dune 22, 2022 entitled “OBC Changes for Septic Staff”. After discussion the members thanked
the NBMCA'’s septic team for their hard work during an extremely busy season. After
discussion, the following resolution was presented:

Resolution No.58-22, Belanger-Champagne

THAT Tara Michauvilie, Building Code tdentification Number (BCIN) 124197 be appointed in the
North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authorities’ (NBMCA) area of jurisdiction, to the position of
Maintenance Program Inspector, and

{(MMAH) to have lillian Fitzmauri Y
individual under the NBMCA’s 4§ n and that members rescind the appointment

ffective immediately, and

FURTHER THAT this report dated June
this meeting.

ceived and appended to the minutes of

Carried Unanimously
13. Municipal of Freedom of Information and Personal Privacy
Brian Tayler informed the membaers that Chitra Gowda is now gffsidered as the “Head” of the
organization when it comes to responses to the public regarding the Municipal Freedom of
Information and Privacy Act.

14, Closed Session of Committee of the Whole

After discussion the following resolutions were presented:

Resolution No. 59-22, Lahaye-Champagne

THAT the meeting move into a Closed Session of Committee of the Whole to discuss Personnel
Matters. .

Carried Unanimously



Resolution No, 60-22, Champagne-Cross

THAT the meeting move out of a Closed Session of Committee of the Whole and back into an
open meeting.

Carried Unanimously

Resolution No. 61-22, Smit-Lahaye

THAT the members accept the report from ML Consulting dated June 22, 2022 and direct staff
to implement the recommendations of the market survey and pay equity analysis by the
consultant with an effective date of July 1%, 2022,

Carried Unanimously

ler's last meeting, the members thanked Brian for
A. The following resolution was presented. A

In recognition of this m 8
his years of dedication and servic
recorded vote was requested:

Resolution No. 62-22, Mendicina-Cha

THAT this is Brian Tayler's — last meeting. Sayin

Recorded Vote Results:

Municipality Member Vote | Present/Absent
Powassan Dave Britton yes sent
Mattawan Michelle Lahaye yes | present
Bonfield Jane Lagassie yes | present
North Bay Chris Mayne yes | present
Mattawa Loren Mick nfa | absent
Papineau/Cameron Shelley Belanger yes | present
North Bay Dave Mendicino yes | present
Callander Irene Smit yes | present
Calvin Sandy Cross yes | present
Chisholm Nunzio Scarfone yes | present
North Bay Ed Valenti n/a | absent
East Ferris Rick Champagne yes | present

Carried






PO The Municipality of 5o clark Street Municipal Law Enforcement Officer

WA = dll ro.sox2so Tel: (705) 4912185 info@powassan.net
Powassan, Ontario POH 120 Fax: {705} 724-5533 Wwww.powassan.net
MEMORANDUM July 20", 2022

TO: Mayor and Council
CC: Lesley Marshali, Clerk
FROM: Ben Mousseau, Protective Services

SUBJECT: Permit Pursuant to Noise By-Law 2001-29

Section 13(a) of the Municipality of Powassan Noise By-Law states:

“None of the provisions of this paragraph shall apply to: The use in a reasonable manner of any
apparatus or mechanism for the amplification of the human voice or of music in a public park or any
other commodious space in connection with any public election meeting, public celebrations or other
reasonable gathering, provided written permission of the Municipal Council has first been obtained.”

| have reviewed the application submitted by Lauren Ryckman of 209 Sweezy Street. | believe the use
of musical instruments and voice ampilification for the purposes of a family reunion is a reasonable
request. |t is my recommendation that Council provide written permission pursuant to the by-law but
with reasonable restrictions on start and end times to mitigate possible conflicts with neighbouring
properties.

Sincerely,

Ben Mousseau

Protective Services
Municipality of Powassan

omEoF 1A
COUNCIL MTG, Aiﬁ .2]27
o | ]







Applicant Information

Application

Noise Exemption Permit

FFirst Name

LALEN

Last Name

EMCCMANS

Street Number | Street Name

Suite/Unit Number

‘204 SWeErt st
City/Town . Province Postal Code
O (LEEL ond PORZ\LO .
Work Telephone Number Mobile Telephone Number Email v
16S 449 - D0 SAME ema @vianet

Identify the organization and/or contact individual (below) who will be responsible for the activity or
event requiring exemption, if it is different from the individual applying for the exemption.

Organization Information (if applicable) . NA -

Organization Name

Street Number | Street Name

Suite/Unit Number

City/Town

Province

Postal Code

Business Telephone Number

Business Mobile Number

Business Email







Application
Noise Exemption Permit

APPENDIX 1 — Amplified Sound

Location of Event

{.ocation Name (if applicable |
> ‘Zq(;i[,MﬁN LEDENCE

Street Number| Street Name A Suite/UnitNumber
209 SWEE) M T

City/Town Province Postal Code
TROST GLEEIL (o \\ Pory 200 .

Other Location Information

Is your event in a park? Park Name and Park Permit No. (if applicable)

[ ] Yes @ No

Event Information

Event Name . [Event Type
PMCLMAN YD PREN

Describe the event and brief description of why a noise permit is required, including the type of
noise impacts anticipated. )

TS & FAERDS GRTACLING N OUYOCOL GAMES «

m‘«s\‘f\qﬁ@ MIAGLC o BMALD) DAL SNSTEM WALL BT Vs ED

Fol MGG (BUTRES MLLOPHONES) + AMING soxutl;
SEL THE SAME DA, YEUL MW RBE RUNG FoQ,MMeP\L
TIMES, | (ALLE 6ROUP OF ATTENDTES WILL (AOSE
SOME NOKE BUT MANAGED & SETUNE Q@P€q+uL.
ExPECTATIONS . APPOY 1S PPL ATTENDING

WOU0 NOWCES | AINGING | LARVAING

A ACOUET\C DEMM  (DEIRMBE) WWLL BE USED ALSO







Dates and Times

Application

Noise Exemption Permit

List the dates ahd times of your set up, events and tear down.

Set up
Set up date(s) (yyyy-mm-dd) Start time End time
2002 -0\ LD i\ P
Event/activity
Event date(s) (yyyy-mm-dd} Start time End time
. 0L -0 12 WL -0% Y
1021 0Bl — 2L-0% OrL -0
M 2BV
2022 -0D- M w P
Tear down
Tear down date(s) (yyyy-mm-dd) Start time End time
2007~ 0014 WAM 20M

Additional information about duration of event

MUSLL PLAMED FLIDAY NIGEFT (fogs 11pm)
FULL DAV EVERT AT AUG 12 ((Mouy \\pm)







Application
Noise Exemption Permit

Equipment

Describe all sound equipment which will be used, how it will be used (e.g.
music/speeches/addresses) and what types of sound control systems will be incorporated.

POCVETRALE PA QNSTEM TOL. PLAMIN iy REDLRED ¢
WVE MUSLC

Mitigation Measures

Describe what steps you will take to reduce the impéct of the noise. (E.g. measures could
include positioning the speakers so the sound is directed away from residences.; 6

WL (EED RPERLERS DRSETED TOWARD A

TRALLEES WL oM A ceele To AEMPT TO
CUERTE BRLLERS TOL SCONG o

HOST. WV DO DU BEST TD KLEER YOUWME TF MUAIC
¢, PEOPLE LIPSaNARUE

Staff bn_'Site during Event

One or more people are fequired to be on-site su-p'ervising throughout the entire duration of the
event, and are responsible to ensure compliance with the permit's terms. Please list their
contact information here.

Name (First, tﬁ%ﬁ«m o C,E.JMZGG\I Businessjelephone Npmber (Site)
Position Tile: oy vog. [ Moo T 05-44A494 00 s
Name (First, Last) %W MU]\\ W Lu\w\j Business Telephone Number (Site)
Position Title: OWNEY | BOST 70‘3“-1&&’1..[0%'0@ _
Name (First, Last) Business Telephone Number (Site)
Position Title:







- The Municipality of 259 Clark Street

@a ﬁ P.0. Box 250 Tel: {705} 724-2813
b L Powassan, Ontario POH 120 Fax: {705) 724-5533 www . powassan.net

August 2, 2022

Lauren Ryckman
209 Sweezy Street
Trout Creek, ON POH1Z0

Dear Ms. Ryckman,

Council has reviewed your application pertaining to a permit under by-law 2001-28. We are
satisfied that a family reunion fits the definition of a “reasonable gathering”. As such, this letter
shall constitute written permission, pursuant to section 13(a) of the by-law, for the use of voice
amplification equipment and musical instruments in a reasonable manner from 10:00am to
10:00pm on August 12t - 14" 2022,

Sincerely,

Peter Mclsaac
Mayor
Municipality of Powassan
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The Municipality of
Powa +an

Date: August 2, 2022

Moved by:

Seconded by:

That Council provide written permission, pursuant to section 13(a) of By-Law 2001-29, to

Resolution no. 2022 -

Lauren Ryckman of 209 Sweezy Street, Trout Creek, for the reasonable use of musical
instruments and voice amplification equipment for purposes of a family reunion.

Carried Defeated Deferred Lost

Mayot

Recorded Vote: Requested by

Name Yeas | Nays | Name Yeas j Nays

Councillor Randy Hall

Mayor Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Markus Wand

Councillor Dave Britton

Councillor Debbie Piekarski







PLANSCAPE

BiruLpING DoMMUNITY THROUGH PLANNING

:

File # XXXXXXXXX  zozz— LOXle June 28, 2022

Planning Report — LOXTON, 146 Osbhorne St., Pcl. 4441 NS, Part of Lot 15, Concession 13
(South Himsworth), Powassan

Introduction
A Site Plan Agreement application has heen submitted by Loxton Holdings inc. to permit the construction
of a new-#-unit, two-storey residential building at 146 Osborne St. in the Town of Powassan.

6 KB
Background
in December 2016, Council approved a Zoning By-law Amendment {By-law 2016-39) to rezone the subject
lands from Village Residential (RV1) to Multiple Residential Exception ~ Holding {RM-7-H), The purpose of
the zone change was to permit the construction of a muiti-unit residential building. In addition to including
minimum setbacks, maximum lot coverage, maximumt height, maximum units, maximum ground fioor
area, parking requirements, By-law 2016-39 also subjected the subject lands to a Holding (-H} symbol. The
By-law directs the Holding (-H) can be lifted once: a) A site plan agreement is prepared by the Municipality
and signed by the Owner; b} Any security required by the site plan agreement; and ¢) Municipal costs
incurred in the review and preparation of item a) and b} have been reimbursed to the Municipality.

Location and Lot Description

As shown on Figures 1 and 2, the subject property is known Municipally as 146 Osborne St., in the Town
* of Powassan, within the Municipality of Powassan. The subject property is approximately 0.182 ha in size
with an existing 30,17 metres of frontage. The subject property is developed with an existing dwelling,

Figure 1. General Location Map
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Municlpality of Powassan
Planning Services - Loxton
June 28, 2022

Figure 2. Detailed Location Map

Proposed Development
The application proposes to construct a twe-storey residential building that contair@-‘;‘)weiling units.
The proposed building will have a ground floor area of 301 sq m and a total floor area of 598 sq m. Each
dwelling unit is accessible by a separate entrance. Figure 3 includes the proposed site plan.

The proposed development complies with the requirements of the Zoning By-law and By-law 2016-38
{i.e. sethacks, coverage, height, parking, etc.).

It is noted that the application form indicates a total building floor area of 625 sq m and a building
height of 9 metres, however the site plan drawing provided shows a total floor area of 598 sqm and a
building height of 7.5 metres. By-law 2016-39 limits the maximum total floor area to 600 sq m and the
maximurm building height te 8 metres. The building details included on the site plan drawing comply but
the details on the application form do not. The municipality can grant approval of the site plan
agreement on the basis that the proposed site ptan drawing complies with the requirements of the
Zoning By-law.

Supporting Reports

In support of the proposed application a Functional Servicing Review was prepared by Antech Design
and Engineering Group, dated May 2017. The review includes an assessment of sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, water usage, and wastewater generation. The review also includes a stormwater management
analysis to determine the post-development flows and the reqguired quantity and quality controls for
stormwater runoff.
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Municipality of Powassan
Planning Services - Loxton
June 28, 2022

The Functional Servicing Review concludes that the proposed development at 146 Oshorne Street can
be constructed to meet the requirements of the Municipality of Powassan. The features of the design
for the proposed development are summarized as follows:

* Sanitary service to the proposed building will be provided via a 150mm service

*  Water service to the proposed building will be provided via a 38mm water service

* Erosion and sediment control measures will be implemented in accordance with the standards
of the Municipality of Powassan.

* Stormwater management for the site has been designed so that 100-year post-development
flows from the property are identical to 2-year pre-development flows, This has been achieved
through ponding in the parking Jot which holds the required 31 m? of accumulated water, and a
super-pipe which restricts flow from the property

Figure 3. Site Plan (Provided by Applicant)

PLANSCARE

BLHLOING DOMMUNITY THROUGH FLAMNMING

— -
(A



Municipality of Powassan
Planning Services - Loxtan
June 28, 2022

Servicing

The subject lands are located within the Serviced Area boundary of the Powasswan Urban Service Area
on Schedule € of the Official Plan. The existing residential development is currently connected to full
municipal water and sewage services. The proposed development is required to be connected to full
municipal water and sewage services.

Parking and Access

By-law 2016-3% requires a minimurm of 10 parking spaces to he provided and requires all parking spaces
to be setback a minim of 20 metres from the front lot line. The proposed site plan includes a total of 10
parking spaces that are setback more than 20 metres from the front lot line. The Functional Servicing
Review indicates that a portion of the proposed parking area will be used to store stormwater during a
100 year rainfall event. It is recommended that a minimurmn of one parking space be provided as a
barrier-free space in accordance with Ontario Regulation 191/11 - Integrated Accessibility Standards.

The existing residential dwelling is accessed via an existing driveway off Osborne Street. The existing
access driveway will be removed and decommissioned, and new ditching created. A new access is to the
proposed parking lot is planned off Osborne Street.

Sufficient parking and access are providéd for the proposed development.

Landscaping and Lighting

The proposed site plan includes landscaping details which consist of grass lawn area surrounding the
proposed building and parking area. 15 trees are proposed to be retained along the easterly side lot line.
Council could consider requiring additional landscaping details {i.e. trees and shrubs) located in the front
yard, westerly interior side yard or rear yard if desired. The municipality has no site plan guidelines or
by-law that specify the number or location of the required landscaping works. 38% of the lot wili be
landscaped open space.

All exterior iighting is proposed to be mounted to the building. No pole lighting is proposed.

Securities

The Planning Act allows municipalities to require the payment of securities as part of granting site plan
approval. Securities are typically taken for landscaping, grading, stormwater management and servicing
works. Some municipalities take securities in 100% of the value of the proposed work, while others take
a lesser percentage (i.e. 50%).

In the case of grading, parking lot and stoermwater management works, the securities amount is based

on a cost estimate provided by the applicant’s engineer. The cost of landscaping works is provided by a
landscape architect, or similar landscape designer/contractor.

PLANSCAPE
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iunicipality of Powassan
Planning Services - Loxton
June 28, 2022

Collection of securities is intended to protect the municipality in the event that the approved works are
not completed as required or problems are identified. The securities are used in part, to compel the
applicant to complete the required works and the securities can be taken by the municipality and used
to rectify any deficiencies that are not addressed by the applicant.

The securities are returned in full to the applicant once the required works are completed and
documentation/sign off is provided by the applicant’s engineer or landscaper that the works were
completed within acceptable tolerances. Some municipalities hold back 10% of the securities for the
first year after development to ensure there are no longer term issues.

Payment of securities is authorized under the Planning Act but is not a planning related matter. The
municipal Public Works and Engineering Departments should advise whether payment of securities
should be taken for the grading, parking lot, and stormwater management works. Council has the
discretion to take securities for landscaping.

Department Comments
The proposed application was circulated to municipal department for review. The following comments
were received from the various departments. '

Building Dept: No issues as the building will meet the requirements of the Ontario Building Code
to pass a review before issuing a bu}Idin_g permit.

Fire Dept: No major concerns. Acceptable hydrant coverage. Acceptable sethacks.

Public Works: Lots of spring runoff. Ditching needs to be cleared.

new water/sewer sizes. Surface water from XXXX lot 13 to be directed into municipal ditch. If curb
and gutters instalied, install spillway into ditch. Entrance culvert to be 400mm in accordance with

By-taw and existing culvert, not 200mm culvert instaliation as per OPSD 802.010 and OPSD
805,010,

7% Engineering: New water/sewer services will be at the applicant’s expense. Applicant to specify the

Next Steps

Council is currently the approval authority for Site Plan Agreement applications. Recent changes to the
Planning Act through Bill 109 require municipalities to delegate the approval of all Site Plan Agreememt
application to staff or a designate. At this time a Delegation By-law has not been brought to Council to
delegate approval to staff. This application has been brought to Council for approval in the interest of
time.

Once the proposed Site Plan Agreement application has been approved by Council, the agreement is
prepared and signed by the owner, and payment of securities are recelved (if required), a Zoning By-law

PLANSOAPRPE
BUILDING UOMMUNITY THROUGH PLANNING
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Municipality of Powassan
Planning Services - Loxton
lune 28, 2022

Amendment application can be submitted to lift the Holding (-H) symbal. Notice of a public meeting is
required as per the requirements of the Planning Act and a public meeting must be held.

The Planning Act obligates municipalities to {ift a Holding (-H) symbol if the requirements of the Hold
described in the By-law have heen addressed to the satisfaction of the municipality. Simifar to a typical
Zoning By-law Amendment application, there is a 20 day appeal period that must pass before the
amendment takes effect, however only the applicant has the ability to appeal a decision or non-decision,
Once the appeal period has passed the owner can submit for building permits, upgrade the existing
servicing coanaction and consiruct a new access,

Recommendation
it is recommended that the application be approved subject to the following conditions:
1. One of the proposed parking spaces be designated a barrier-free space and be sized in accordance

with Ontario Regulation 191/11 - Integrated Accessibility Standards

Yours truly,

PLANSCAPE INC.
R

Rian Allen MSc, MCIP, RPP

Planning Consultant
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Municipality of
TN T g E F B

Resolution no. 2022 -

Date: August 2, 2022

Moved by:

Seconded by:

That Council hereby approves the Site Plan Agreement application SPA2022-1 with the condition that an
accessible parking space be provided. Staff are directed to execute an agreement between the municipality and
the landowner. The approval is subject to the following conditions:

L. That payment of securities be provided for the stormwater management, grading and parking lot works, at
50% of the value of the work being done.

2. That payment of securities be provided for the landscaping works, at 50% of the value of the work being
done.

3. That work to be done on municipal property (i.e. work associated with replacing water and sanitary service
pipes under Osborne Street, etc.) be done by a contractor hired by the applicant, at their cost, and that the
applicant be responsible for all costs incurred by the municipality (i.e. assistance and/or supervision of work
to be done, by municipal engineer and/or public works staff). Security will also be required at 100% of the
value for this work.

4. That this approval is in effect for a period not exceeding 3 years.

5. 'That the applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the execution of the agreement.

Carried Defeated Deferred Lost

Mayor

Recorded Vote: Requested by

Name Yeas | Nays | Name Yeas | Nays

Councillor Randy Hall Mayor Peter Mclsaac
Councillor Markus Wand

Councillor Dave Britton

Councillor Debbie Piekarski




SOCIAL NETWORKING POLICY

Policy: Social Media Policy

Effective Date:

Date Last Reviewed:

Scheduled Review Date:

Supersedes: All previous Policies and/or Statements

Approved by:

POLICY STATEMENT:

The Municipality of Powassan’s (“Municipality”) social networking policy is to allow
the Municipality to take advantage of social media’s business benefits, promote its
services and better engage with the community, while avoiding the significant risks
involved.

The Mayor of the Municipality shall be considered the official spokesperson for the
Municipality. No Municipal employee (“Employee”) shall hold themselves as
representing the Municipality on behalf of the mayor, without written permission
obtained from the mayor.

DEFINITIONS

Employeea
Any full-time or part-time employee, any temporary or contract employee, any
volunteer or any student or intern worker.

Social Media
Websites and applications that enable users to create and share content or to
participate in social networking.

POLICY
Social Media Updates

The public should be made aware that Municipal social media accounts vary in terms
of frequency and content. Helpful and community information will be published,
sometimes with links to more detailed information and resources {such as job
postings from local communities and businesses). Not all comments or direct
messages will receive a reply and commenters should be reminded that pertinent
information can be found on the Municipal website or by calling the Municipal office.
Accounts will be monitored during business hours and Employees are not expected to
post or comment after hours.

i!i.vfkTEl
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Social media use at work

Employees are expected to use the Internet responsibly and productively, and
excessive personaf Internet browsing, including social media use, is not permitted.

The Municipality reserves the right to monitor how employees use municipal-owned
property, including computers, cell phones and networking equipment, and should be
mindful that all web browsing they do on the company’s computers or other devices
may be monitored.

Social media posts about the Municipality

Employees of the Municipality are forbidden from using social networks, personal or
otherwise, to post or display comments about co-workers, supervisors, management,
Councit including the Mayor, or the Municipalfity, that are wvulgar, obscene,
threatening, or a violation of the Municipality’s  policies on harassment,
discrimination, defamation, confidentiality, and non-competition.

Employees may not use social networks to disclose any confidential or proprietary
information about the Municipality, its employees, ratepayers, business partners,
members of the public, or other professionals.

When appropriate, employees should disclose their relationship with the Municipality
in their online posts and refrain from speaking on behalf of the Municipality when not
authorized,

Authorization is considered given to those employees whose job descriptions contain,
and outline, the use of social media, or who have been authorized to represent the
Municipality through access to the Municipality’s Social Media Networking pages.
Access is given with the understanding that any comments made on the
Municipality’s social media pages must follow all Municipal policies and guidelines and
access can be revoked at any time.

Posts on behalf of the Municipality should be related to the Municipal office, the
Municipality of Powassan as a whole, local events, announcements, job postings, etc.
No political views or personal opinions should be posted,

Personatl Social Media Accounts

When posting on personal social media networks, no Employee shall post, comment,
or disclose confidential information obtained during employment, comment on the
affairs of the Municipality, the content of council meetings or other aspects of the
municipal workplace or engage with ratepayers or other members of the public, in a
way that may show the Municipalfity in a negative light.

Employees should keep in mind that they are personally responsible for what they
post online, and even disclaimers such as ‘opinions are my own’ does not remove
that responsibility. Employees should be mindful that what they say will be available
publicly for a long time and when posting on personal or Municipal social networking
sites, the information provided should be true and accurate.

When posting material or discussing topics related to their work at the Municipality,
employees should identify themselves as an employee and not engage in anonymous
discussions related to Municipal business in any form. The employee should not
mislead anyone about their identity, the origin of the posted content, or falsely claim



to represent a person, organization, or entity, while discussing, commenting, or
posting, about the Municipality.

Employees should not use logos or other visuals that may suggest their personal
account represents the Municipality and avoid actions which could compromise, or
appear to compromise, the integrity of the Municipality.

Employees may share work-related content that fs considered public/non-

confidential, such as achievements, team activities, etc. but it is important that what
is posted does not viclate their duties as a Municipal employee.

Not following the Social Networking Policy couid lead to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

It is HR’s and/or Management’s responsibility to ensure the policy ts enforced and
updated.

It is the individual's responsibility to ensure the policy is followed.






7\ ontario Clean Water Agency POWASSAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

e fience Ontavienne Des Eaux

S erthesstorn Ontarlo Region QUARTERLY OPERATIONS REPORT

SYSTEM OVERVIEW April 1% to June 30" , 2022

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Drinking Water System
¢ The water treatment system operated well during the second quarter.

+ Annual Well inspections completed.

Wastewater Treatment
¢ The wastewater treatment system performed well during the second quarter.
« North cell lagoon treated with 2200 imperiat gallons (IMPG) of ferric sulphate on May 3, 2022,
¢ South cell lagoon treated with 1600 IMPG of ferric sulphate on May 3, 2022.

e Spring discharge completed from May 10 to June 3. Effluent samples below limits stated in
Environmental Compliance Approval (ECA).

CAPITAL PrAN PROGRESS

Drinking Water System
o N/A
Wastewater Treatment

o N/A

ASSET MIANAGEMENT

See Appendix A - Work Order summary for water treatment plant {W17P)
See Appendix B - Work Order summary for wastewater treatment lagoon {WWTL)

CALL-OUT SUMMARY

See Appendix C - Call-out Report for WTP
See Appendix D — Call-out Report for WWTL

DNTEOF 4 “7
Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report COUNCIL MTBape ﬂf‘é K4 J 7
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£ _\ Ontarlo Clean Water Agency POwASSAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

Censy  Afence Ontarienne Des Eaox

T Nertheastern Ontaro Region QUARTERLY OPERATIONS REPORT

REGULATORY

* Al drinking water samples required under O. Regulation 170/03 were collected and tested in the second
quarter of 2022 and all results fell within regulatory limits.

*  Application to renew Permit to Take Water (PTTW) submitted and new PTTW #7867-CDEJHF received April
14, 2022, Expires April 12, 2032,

*  Winter term pH and alkalinty sampling completed April 12, 2022.

* Quarterly trihalomethanes {THM), haloacetic acids (HAA), Nitrate and Nitrite sampling completed April 11,
2022,

* Oif-site external Re-Accreditation audit completed April 12, 2022, there were no findings identified. Onsite
Re-Accreditation audit completed May 17, 2022. One opportunity for improvement identified and
resolved,

* No Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) or Ministry of Labour {MOL} inspections
were conducted this quarter.

* Annual internal audit and risk assessment review completed June 7, 2022. Three (3) opportunities for
improvement {OFls) identified and resolved.

*  Operational Plan updated as per internal/external audit findings.

*  Allrequired sewage samples required under the system’s ECA collected and tested in the second quarter of
2022,

INCIDENTS AND COMPLAINTS

Powassan Drinking Water System

Incident N/A
Date
Details

Powassan Wastewater System

Incident North Cell Lagoon Overflow
Date April 10, 2022
Details Type of Incident: Overflow

SAC Ref No.:1-1RBZS!

Start Date & Time: April 10, 2022 @ 0900 hrs.

Termination: April 13, 2022 @ 1300 hrs.

Duration: 28 hours

Approximate volume: 650 m?

Details: Continued spring melt coupled with rain filled the North Cell to capacity
during the weekend. The lagoon level increased until it began overflowing.
Receiver: Genessee Creek

Actions: Isolated the North Cell immediately, opened injet to the South Cell
{capacity is approximately 12 inches in South Cell}, opened equalization valve

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page 2 of 9



£\ Ontarlo Clean Water Agency PowassAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

e Agonco Ontarienne Des Eaux

=~ QUARTERLY OPERATIONS REPORT

Northeastern Ontario Region

between cells to bring down {evel in North Cell and collected single set of samples

due to short duration.
Reporting: Verbal & written reports to MOE SAC, MOH and EC as required

HEALTH AND SAFETY

« Staff training completed on Emergency Showers and Eyewash Stations.

s Staff training completed on Ladder Safety.

« Annual health and safety inspection completed for the water treatment plant.

« Staff training completed on FEP Binder.

PowAsSAN DRINKING WATER SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

See Appendix E - Performance Assessment Report Water

PowaAssAN WASTEWATER TREATMENT LAGOON — WASTEWATER FLOW SUMMARY

See Appendix F — Performance Assessment Report Wastewater

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page 3 of 9
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Appendix A - Work Order Summary for WTP

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Papedof 9
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Ministry of infrastructure Ministére de l'infrastructure

infrasiruciure Program Design and Division de la cenception et de la mise en .
Delivery Division osuvre des programmes d'infrastructure =

1 Stane Rd W, 4" Floor 1, Stone Road Quest, 4e étage 0 nt a rl o
Guelph, Onlario N1G 4Y2 Guelph (Ontario) NG 4Y2 )

Case #2021-09-1-1629412759

Codey Munshaw, Public Works Engineer
The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
cmunshaw@powassan.net

Re: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) Green Stream — Transfer
Payment Agreement

Project Title: Queens Avenue Watermain Rehabilitation

| am pleased to provide you with the attached copy of the Transfer Payment Agreement
(the Agreement) for your approved ICIP Green Stream Project as well as a summary
document outlining important information about your Agreement. Please review both
documents carefully as there are some action items for you to complete. If changes to
the Agreement are required, these should be made before the Agreement is executed.
Please contact your Project Analyst immediately to discuss any required revisions,

We ask that you please make best efforts to return signed copies of the Transfer
Payment Agreement to our office by Friday August 12, 2022. In order to execute your
agreement, the designated signatories should sign on page 6. You will also need to
insert the titles of the designated signatories and affix the corporate seal (if applicable)
in the signature area.

Given the current situation with COVID-19, if you wish to use electronic means to
execute your agreement, please ensure you scan your entire agreement (not just the
signature page) and email to [CIPGreen@ontario.ca.

If you wish to proceed with hard-copy execution, the designated signatories should sign
two (2) copies of the Agreement and return the two original signed and sealed (if
applicable) copies via courier to:

Ministry of Infrastructure

Infrastructure Program Delivery Branch
Infrastructure Renewal Programs Unit
1 Stone Road West, 4NW

Guelph, ON N1G 4Y2

A copy of the Agreement will be returned to you following execution by the Province.
' 1
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Prior to entering into a Transfer Payment Agreement (TPA), the ministry requires that
you verify and attest that the organization is in good-standing with environmental, labour
and tax laws. This information must be submitted within your organization’s profile in
the Transfer Payment Ontario (TPON) system.,

An attestation, available in TPON, is sufficient to indicate that your organization is in
good standing with labour and environmentai laws. See steps below:

» Log into TPON with your ONe-key account

« Update your organization’s information and move to the attestation section

+ Complete the attestation, note that it requires your organization to input information
from a completed Tax Compliance Verification (TCV) check.

For steps and information on how to verify your organization’s tax compliance status,
please go to the Check your tax compliance status webpage.

o Note: contact information for all inquiries regarding tax compliance verification
should be directed to the Ministry of Finance at TCV@ontario.ca or Service
Ontario:

» 416-326-1234

 Toll-free: 1-800-267-8097

o TTY: 416-325-3408

« Toll-free TTY: 1-800-268-7095

Until this information is completed, the TPA for your Investing in Canada Infrastructure
Program approved project cannot be fully executed.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call your Senior Project
Analyst, Barbara Maknoni, at Barbara.Maknoni@ontario.ca or 519-546-8793.

Congratulations on your successful application and we look forward to working with you
as you implement this project.

Sincerely,

Valeria Mendez Riveros

Manager, Infrastructure Renewal Programs Unit
Infrastructure Program Delivery Branch

Ministry of Infrastructure

Attachments: Agreement
Important Information regarding your ICIP Agreement
Aboriginal Consultation Requirements



IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING YOUR AGREEMENT

Project Description - Please ensure the description of your project noted in Schedule
“C" is accurate and complete. The amount of funding you will receive is contingent on
combletion of the project described in this Schedule, and only activities noted will be
eligible. Your proposed project description may have been revised from the information
submitted as part of your application based on the eligibility of project components. The
description in your Agreement supercedes all prior information shared with the
Province, and only the work described in the Agreement will be funded, subject to
eligibility requirements being met. If changes to the project description noted in
Schedule “C” are required, please contact your Project Analyst immediately fo reguest a
revision.

insurance - Article A10 of Schedule “A” outlines the insurance requirements for the
project. Please ensure that the required insurance is in place prior to the start of the
project. Note: At this time, MOI does not need to receive documentation that these
requirements have been met but please ensure these are kept on file as they may be
requested at any time during the Term of the Agreement.

Reporting - Schedule “D” provides details on the type of reporting that you will be
required to provide to the Province. Note that these reporting requirements must be met
in order to receive funding. The Province will direct the format and timelines for
reporting. Regular reporting must be completed within the Transfer Payment Ontario
online platform.

Cost Eligibility — Schedule "E” sets out the costs that are eligible and ineligible under
this funding agreement. No costs incurred prior to the Federal Approval Date set out in
the Agreement are eligible for reimbursement. In order to qualify for payment, costs
must be incurred and paid and must be submitted by March 31 of the year following the
Funding Year in which they were incurred.

Communications / Sighage - Schedule “G" outlines the communication requirements
for the project. As noted in Schedule “G”, funding provided by both the provincial and
federal government must be recognized in the format of project signage. The Province
and Canada will provide further instruction regarding signage shortly. The cost of
signage is considered an eligible project cost within your approved funding allocation so
long as such costs are billed by a third-party vendor.

Timing for Installation of Sign. If required, signage recognizing Canada’s and the
Province's respective contributions will be installed at the Project site(s) 30 days prior to
the start of construction, be visible for the duration of the Project, and remain in place
until 30 days after construction is completed and the infrastructure is fully operational or
opened for public use. Please note that due to the provincial election, signage
installation is on hold for both provincial and federal signage. Futther
instructions on how to resume communication activities are pending and will be
provided once available.



Aboriginal Consultation - Schedule "I’ outlines the Aboriginal Consultation
requirements for the project. As noted in Schedule “I” any required Aboriginal
Consultation must be complete prior to the start of any project construction work. In
addition, capital costs are not eligible for reimbursement and no site preparation,
removal of vegetation or construction can occur until Canada and if applicable the
Province have confirmed in writing that it is satisfied that all federal duty to consult and
environmental assessment requirements have been met. More details on Aboriginal
Consultation Requirements are set out in the attachment to this document,



ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

in consideration of the financial support for the Project, if notified by Canada or the
Province, your community must engage and consult with Aboriginal Groups that may
have a potential interest in the Project. The Province intends to rely on this consultation
process as much as possible. As part of this process, your community must disclose
that financial assistance for the project is being provided by Ontario. You must also
provide your Project Analyst with a summary of communications with Aboriginal Groups,
including any issues or concerns that may be raised by any Aboriginal Group, and an
indication of how your community has addressed or proposes to address those issues
or concerns. This information may be provided in the form of the template consultation
log and tracking chart provided by Canada (if applicable).

If in the future changes to the nature, scope, design or location of the Project are being
considered, you must immediately notify your Project Analyst so that the Province may
determine whether the proposed change impacts the duty to consult. Your community
must also cease all construction activities if at any time during construction
archaeological resources are found; other impacts that could affect Aboriginal or treaty
rights emerge; or you are contacted by any Aboriginal Group expressing concerns
about the project and potential impacts on rights.






Case #2021-09-1-1628412759

TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
FOR THE INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM (ICIP):
GREEN STREAM

THiS TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT for an Investing in Canada Infrastructure
Program (ICIP): Green Stream Project (the “Agreement’) is effective as of the Effective Date.

BETWEEN:
Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario,
as represented by the Minister of Infrastructure
(“Ontario” or the “Province”)
-and -
The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
(CRA#108129149)
(the “Recipient”)
BACKGROUND

The Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (“ICIP”) is a federal infrastructure program
designed to create long-term economic growth, build inclusive, sustainable and resilient
communities, and support a low-carbon economy.

The Government of Canada (“Canada”) announced, in its Budget 2016 and Budget 2017, over
$180 billion for the ICIP to support sustainable and inclusive communities, while driving
economic growth.

The federal Minister of Infrastructure, Communities and Intergovernmental Affairs and the
provincial Minister of Infrastructure entered into the Canada-Ontario Integrated Bilateral
Agreement for the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program for Canada to provide financial
support to the Province.

Under the Bilateral Agreement, Canada agrees, amongst other things, to provide contribution
funding to the Province under the green infrastructure funding stream of ICIP. This stream
supports greenhouse gas emission (GHG) reductions, enables greater adaptation and
resilience to the impacts of climate change and climate related disaster mitigation, and ensures
that more communities can provide clean air and safe drinking water for their citizens.

Also, under the Bilateral Agreement, Ontario agrees to identify projects and be responsible for

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 1 of 56




Case #2021-09-1-1620412759

the transfer of ICIP and provincial funds to eligible recipients pursuant to transfer payment
agreements.

The Recipient has applied to the Province for ICIP funds to assist the Recipient in carrying out
a green stream project.

The Province has submitted to Canada for approval and the Province and Canada have
approved, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the Bilateral Agreement, the
Project as set out in Schedule “C”.

The Agreement sets out the terms and conditions upon which ICIP funds, up to the Maximum
Funds, will be provided to the Recipient for carrying out the Project.

CONSIDERATION

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in the Agreement and for
other good and vaiuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are expressly
acknowledged, the Province and the Recipient agree as follows:

1.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

1.1 Schedules to the Agreement. The following schedules and their sub-schedules, if any,
form part of the Agreement:

Schedule "A” - General Terms and Conditions

Schedule "B” - Specific Information

Schedule "C" - Project Description, Financial Information, Timelines and Project
Standards

Schedule “D” - Reports

Schedule “E” - Eligible Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures
Schedule “F” - Evaluation

Schedule “G” - Communications Protocol

Schedule “H" - Disposal of Assets

Schedule “I” - Aboriginal Consultation Protocol

Schedule “J” - Requests for Payment and Payment Procedures
Schedule “"K” - Committee

1.2 Entire Agreement. The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties in respect to the subject matter contained in the Agreement and supersedes all
prior oral or written representations and agreements save and except for the Bilateral
Agreement, which shalf apply in accordance with section 2.1.

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 2 of 56



2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

Case #2021-08-1-1629412759

CONFLICT OR INCONSISTENCY

Conflict or Inconsistency. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of
the requirements of:

(a) the Bilateral Agreement and the Agreement, the Bilateral Agreement will prevail to
the extent of the conflict or inconsistency;

(b) the main body of the Agreement and any of the requirements of a schedule or a
sub-schedule, the main body of the Agreement will prevail to the extent of the
conflict or inconsistency;

(c) Schedule “A” (General Terms and Conditions) and any of the requirements of
another schedule or a sub-schedule, Schedule “A” (General Terms and
Conditions) will prevail to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency; or

(d) a schedule and any of the requirements of a sub-schedule, the schedule will
prevail to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency.

EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND COUNTERPARTS

One and the Same Agreement. The Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

Electronic Execution and Delivery of Agreement. The parties agree that the
Agreement may be validly executed electronically, and that their respective electronic
signature is the legal equivalent of a manual signature. The electronic or manual
signature of a party may be evidenced by one of the following means and transmission
of the Agreement may be as follows:

() amanual signature of an authorized signing representative placed in the
respective signature line of the Agreement and the Agreement scanned as a pdf
and delivered by emaif to the other Party;

(i) a digital signature, including the name of the authorized signing representative
typed in the respective signature line of the Agreement, an image of a manual
signature or an Adobe signature of an authorized signing representative, or any
other digital signature of an authorized signing representative, placed in the
respective signature line of the Agreement and the Agreement delivered by email
to the other Party; or

(i) any other means with the other Party’s prior written consent.

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario iCIP Green TPA Page 3 of 56




4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

Case #2021-09-1-1629412759

AMENDING THE AGREEMENT AND AGREEMENT REVIEW

Amending the Agreement. The Agreement may only be amended by a written
agreement duly executed by the Parties.

Agreement Review. If, pursuant to section 25.10 (Review of Agreement) of the Bilateral
Agreement, the Bilateral Agreement is reviewed after three or five years, or both, of the
effective date of the Bilateral Agreement, and any changes to the Bilateral Agreement
are required as a result, the Parties agree to amend the Agreement as necessary and in
a manner that is consistent with such changes.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Acknowledgement from Recipient. The Recipient acknowledges, in respect of the
Project, that:

(a) the Funds are to assist the Recipient to carry out the Project and not to provide
goods or services to the Province or Canada:

(b) the Province and Canada are not respansible for carrying out the Project;

(¢} the Province’s and Canada's role in respect of the Project is limited to making a
financial contribution to the Recipient for the Project, and the Province and Canada
are not involved in the Project or its operation;

(d) the Province and Canada are neither decision-makers nor administrators in
respect of the Project;

(e) the Province is bound by the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
(Ontario) and any information provided to the Province in connection with the
Project or otherwise in connection with the Agreement may be subject to
disclosure in accordance with that Act;

(i  Canada is bound by the Access fo Information Act (Canada) and any information
provided to Canada by either the Province or the Recipient in connection with the
Project or otherwise in connection with the Agreement may be subject to
disclosure in accordance with that Act:

(g) by receiving Funds, the Recipient may be subject to legislation applicable to
organizations that receive funding from the Government of Ontario, including the
Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010 (Ontario), the Public Sector Salary
Disclosure Act, 1996 (Ontario), and the Auditor General Act (Ontario); and

(h) the Recipient has read and understood the Bilateral Agreement.

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 4 of 56
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6.0

6.1

6.2

Case #2021-09-1-1628412759

Acknowledgement from Province. The Province acknowledges that the Recipient
may be bound by the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
(Ontario) and any information provided to the Recipient in connection with the Project or
otherwise in connection with the Agreement may be subject to disclosure in accordance
with that Act.

CANADA'S RIGHTS AND INFORMAT!ON SHARING WITH CANADA

Third Party Beneficiary. The Recipient agrees that, although the Agreement is
between the Province and the Recipient, Canada is, in respect of the rights, covenants,
remedies, obligations, indemnities, and benefits (together referred to as “Rights”)
undertaken or given to Canada in the Agreement, a third party beneficiary under the
Agreement and is entitled to rely upon and directly enforce those Rights as if Canada
were a party to the Agreement.

Sharing of Information with the Province and Canada. The Recipient agrees that,
consistent with section 6.1 (Third Party Beneficiary) and for the implementation of the
Bilateral Agreement:

(@) the Province or Canada, or both, and in respect of Canada either directly or
through the Province, may, upon Notice fo the Recipient, request additional
information from the Recipient including, without limitation, information for any
determination under Article A.27.0 (Environmental Requirements and
Assessments) and Article A.28.0 {(Aboriginal Consuitation);

(b) if the Province or Canada, or both, provide the Recipient with Notice under
paragraph 6.2(a), the Recipient will, within the timelines set out in the Notice,
deliver the information to either the Province or Canada, or both, as required; and

(c) the Province or Canada, or bath, may share any information received from the
Recipient pursuant to the Agreement with each other.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 5 of 56



Case #2021-09-1-1629412759

The Parties have executed the Agreement on the dates set out below.

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO, as
represented by the Minister of Infrastructure

Date p.p. Adam Redish, Assistant Deputy Minister
The Honourable Kinga Surma
Minister of Infrastructure

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Date Name:
Title:

I have authority to bind the Recipient,

Date Name:
Title:
I have authority to bind the Recipient.

[SCHEDULE “A” — GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOLLOWS]

Municipality of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 6 of 56
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Case #2021-09-1-1629412759

SCHEDULE “A"”
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

interpretation. For the purposes of interpretation:

(a) wards in the singular include the plural and vice-versa;

(b) words in one gender include all genders;

(c) the background and headings do not form part of the Agreement; they are for
information and reference only and will not affect the interpretation of the

Agreement;

(d) any reference to dollars or currency will be in Canadian dollars and currency;

(e) “shall’ and “will" are used interchangeably in the Agreement and denote the
same affirmative and imperative obligation on the applicable Party.

(f) all accounting terms not otherwise defined in the Agreement have their ordinary
meanings; and

(g) ‘“include”, “includes”’, and “including” denote that the subsequent list is not
exhaustive.

Definitions. In the Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:
“Aboriginal Community” has the meaning ascribed to it in section 1.1.1 (Definitions).

“Aboriginal Consultation Record” means the Aboriginal Consultation Record
described in section 1.3.1 (Requirements for Aboriginal Consultation Record).

“Agreement” means this agreement entered into between the Province and the
Recipient, all of the schedules and sub-schedules listed in section 1.1 (Schedules to
the Agreement), and any amending agreement entered into pursuant to section 4.1
(Amending the Agreement). :

“Asset” means any real or personal property, or immovable or movable asset,
acquired, purchased, constructed, rehabilitated, or improved, in whole or in part, with
any of the Funds.

“Authorities” means any government authority, agency, body or department having
or claiming jurisdiction over the Agreement or the Project, or both.

“Bilateral Agreement” means the Canada-Ontario Integrated Bilateral Agreement for

Municipatity of Powassan and Ontario ICIP Green TPA Page 7 of 56



Case #2021-09-1-1629412759

the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program entered into between Canada and Her
Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, effective as of March 26, 2018, as amended.

“Business Day” means any working day the Province is open for business, Monday
to Friday inclusive, excluding statutory and other holidays, namely: New Year's Day;
Family Day; Good Friday; Easter Monday; Victoria Day; Canada Day, Civic Holiday;
Labour Day; Thanksgiving Day; Remembrance Day; Christmas Day; Boxing Day; and
any other day on which the Province is not open for business.

“Canada” means, unless the context requires otherwise, Her Majesty the Queen in
right of Canada.

“Canada’s Maximum Contribution” means the maximum contribution from Canada
as set out in Schedule “C".

“Committee” refers to a Committee established pursuant to section A.29.1
(Establishment of Committee).

“Communications Activities” means, but is not limited to, public or media events or
ceremonies including key milestone events, news releases, reports, web and social
media products or postings, blogs, news conferences, public notices, physical and
digital signs, publications, success stories and vignettes, photos, videos, multi-media
content, advertising campaigns, awareness campaigns, editorials, multi-media
products, and all refated communication materials under the Agreement.

“Contract” means a contract between the Recipient and a Third Party whereby the
Third Party agrees to supply goods or services, or both, in respect of the Project in
return for financial consideration.

“Effective Date” means the date of signature by the last signing party to the
Agreement,

“Eligible Expenditures” means the costs in respect of the Project that the Recipient
has incurred and paid and that are eligible for payment under the terms and conditions
of the Agreement, and that are further described in Schedule “E” (Eligible
Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures).

“Environmental Laws” means all applicable governmental, regulations, by-laws,
orders, rules, policies, or guidelines respecting the protection of the natural
environment or the public, and the manufacture, importation, handling, transportation,
storage, disposal, and treatment of environmental contaminants and includes, without
limitation, the Environmental Protection Act (Ontario), Environmental Assessment Act
(Ontario), Ontario Water Resources Act (Ontario), Canadian Environmental Protection
Act, 1999 (Canada), Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012 (Canada),
Fisheries Act (Canada), the Impact Assessment Act (Canada), and the Canadian
Navigable Waters Act (Canada).
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“Evaluation” means an evaluation in respect of the Project or the ICIP as described
in Article F.1.0 (Project and {CiP Evaluations).

“Event of Default” has the meaning ascribed to it in section A.12.1 (Events of
Default).

“Expiration Date” means the expiry date set out in Schedule “B" (Specific
Information).

«“Federal Approval Date” means the date on which Canada has approved the Project
identified in Schedule “C” (Project Description, Financial Information, Timelines, and
Project Standards).

“Funding Year” means:

(a) in the case of the first Funding Year, the period commencing on the
Effective Date and ending on the following March 31; and

(b) in the case of Funding Years subsequent to the first Funding Year, the
period commencing on April 1 following the end of the previous Funding
Year and ending on the following March 31 .or the Expiration Date,
whichever comes first.

“Funds” means the money the Province provides to the Recipient pursuant to the
Agreement, and in any event, will not exceed the Maximum Funds.

“Holdback” means the Holdback described in and to be paid in accordance with
section A.4.12 (Retention of Contribution) and Article J.7.0 (Holdback).

“|CIP” means the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program, a federal infrastructure
program described in the first paragraph of the “Background” to the Agreement.

“Indemnified Parties” means Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario and Her
Maijesty the Queen in right of Canada, and includes their respective ministers, officers,
servants, agents, appointees and employees.

“Ineligible Expenditures” means the costs that are ineligible for payment under the
terms and conditions of the Agreement, and that are described in Schedule “E”
(Eligible Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures).

“Interest or Interest Earned” means the amount of money earned by the Recipient
from placing the Funds in an interest bearing account as set out under section A.4.4 of
Schedule “A” of this Agreement, and includes any and all interest or other income
generated from the Funds.
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“Loss” means any cause of action, liability, loss, cost, damage, or expense (including
legal, expert, and consultant fees) that anyone incurs or sustains as a result of or in
connection with the Project or any part of the Agreement or the Bilateral Agreement.

“Maximum Funds” means the maximum Funds amount as set out in Schedule “B”
(Specific Information).

“Notice” means any communication given or required to be given pursuant to the
Agreement.

“Ontario’s Maximum Contribution” means the maximum contribution from Ontario
as set out in Schedule "C".

“Parties” means the Province and the Recipient.
“Party” means either the Province or the Recipient.

“Person” means, without limitation, a person, the Recipient, a Third Party, a
corporation, or any other legal entity, and their officers, servants, employees, or
agents.

“Proceeding” means any action, claim, demand, lawsuit, or other proceeding,
whether in contract, tort (including negligence), or otherwise, that anyone makes,
brings, or prosecutes as a result of or in connection with the Project or any part of the
Agreement or the Bilateral Agreement.

“Project” means the undertaking described in Schedule “C” (Project Description,
Financial Information, Timelines, and Project Standards).

“Records Review” means any assessment the Province conducts pursuant to
section A.7.4 (Records Review).

“Remedial Period” means the period of time within which the Recipient is required to
remedy an Event of Default, pursuant to paragraph A.12.3 (b), and includes any such
period or periods of time by which the Province extends that time in accordance with
section A.12.4 (Recipient Not Remedying).

“Reports” means the reports described in Schedule “D” (Reports).

“Requirements of Law” means all applicable requirements, laws, statutes, codes,
acts, ordinances, approvals, orders, decrees, injunctions, by-laws, rules, regulations,
official plans, permits, licences, authorizations, directions, and agreements with all
Authorities, and includes the Environmental Laws.

“Substantial Completion” or “Substantially Completed” means that the Project
can be used for the purpose for which it was intended and, in any event, no later than
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October 31, 2026.
“Term” means the period of time described in section A.3.1 (Term).

“Third Party” means any person or legal entity, other than a Party, who participates
in the implementation of the Project by means of a Contract.

“Total Financial Assistance” means the total Project funding from ali sources
including, but not limited to, funding from federal, provincial, territorial, municipal,
regional, band council, and [ndigenous government sources; private sources; and in-
kind contributions.

“Transfer Payment Ontario” means the Province’s enterprise system for managing
time-limited and ongoing transfer payment activities.

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS

General. The Recipient represents, warrants, and covenants that, in respect of the
Project:

(a) it has, and will continue to have, the experience and expertise necessary to carry
out the Project;

(b) itis in compliance with, and will continue to comply with, all Requirements of Law
related to any aspect of the Project, the Funds, or both;

(c) unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement, any information the Recipient
provided to the Province in support of its request for Funds (including, without
limitation, any information relating to any eligibility requirements) was true and
complete at the time the Recipient provided it and will continue to be true and
complete;

(d) the Project meets and will continue to meet all of the program’s eligibility criteria,
construction conditions and the Recipient will abide by all of the Province's and
Canada’s respective requirements set out in the guidelines, including the
financial, contractual and reporting requirements,

(e) the Project will meet the following environmental quality outcome:

Environmental Quality Outcomes:

Increased access to potable water

(f) if the Project meets an environmental quality outcome, once complete it
will, depending on the nature of the Project:
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(i) resultin wastewater effluent that meets the Wastewater Systems Effluent
Regulations or provincial regulations where there is a federal equivalency
agreement in place, where applicable; or

(if) result in drinking water quality that meets or exceeds provincial standards,
where applicable.

any Funds received have not displaced, and will continue to not displace, the
Recipient’'s own funding and spending on public transit.

Execution of Agreement. The Recipient represents and warrants that it has:

(a)
(b)

the full power and authority to enter into the Agreement; and

taken all necessary actions to authorize the execution of the Agreement, in a
manner that is satisfactory to the Province, including passing of municipal by-law
or council resolution authorizing the Recipient to enter into the Agreement, where
required.

Governance. The Recipient represents, warrants, and covenants that it has, will
maintain in writing, and will foliow:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

procedures to enable the Recipient to manage Funds prudently and effectively;
procedufes to enable the Recipient to complete the Project successfully;

procedures to enable the Recipient to identify risks to the completion of the
Project and strategies to address the identified risks, all in a timely manner;

procedures to enable the preparation and submission of all Reports required
pursuant to Article A.7.0 (Reporting, Accounting, and Review); and

procedures to enable the Recipient to address such other matters as the
Recipient considers necessary to enable the Recipient to carry out its obligations
under the Agreement.

Supporting Proof. Upon the request of the Province, the Recipient will provide the
Province with proof of the matters referred to in this Article A.2.0 (Representations,
Warranties, and Covenants).
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TERM OF THE AGREEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

Term. The term of the Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will expire
on the Expiration Date, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Article A.11.0
(Termination on Notice) or Article A.12.0 (Event of Default, Corrective Action, and
Termination for Default).

Substantial Completion. The Recipient will ensure that the Project is Substantially
Completed on or before October 31, 2026.

FUNDS AND CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT

Funds Provided. The Province will:

(a)

(b)

provide the Recipient funding up to the Maximum Funds for the sole purpose of
carrying out the Project;

provide the Funds to the Recipient in accordance with the request for payment
and payment procedures provided for in Schedule “J” (Requests for Payment and
Payment Procedures); and

deposit the Funds into an account the Recipient designates, provided that the
account:

(i) is at a branch of a Canadian financial institution in Ontario; and

(i) is solely in the name of the Recipient.

Limitation on Payment of Funds. Despite section A.4.1 (Funds Provided):

(a)

(b)

()

in addition to any other limitation under the Agreement on the payment of Funds,
the Province is not obligated to provide:

(i) any Funds to the Recipient until the Recipient fulfils the special conditions
listed in section A.31.1 (Special Conditions); and

(i) any Funds to the Recipient until the Province and Canada are satisfied with

the progress of the Project;

the Province, at its sole discretion, may adjust the amount of Funds it provides to
the Recipient based upon the Province's assessment of the information the
Recipient provides to the Province pursuant to section A.7.2 (Preparation and
Submission); and

any payment of Funds is subject to:
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(i) the requirements of the Financial Administration Act (Ontario), including the
availability of an appropriation by the Ontario Legislature that is sufficient and
constitutes lawful authority for the payment:

(i) ministerial funding levels in respect of transfer payments, the program under
which the Agreement was made, or otherwise that are sufficient for the
payment; and

(i) Canada’'s payment of funds to the Province, pursuant to the Bilaterai
Agreement, that are sufficient for the payment.

The Province, at its sole discretion, may reduce or cancel any amount of Funds
or terminate the Agreement in response to a reduction or lack of federal or
provincial government appropriation, ministerial funding levels, or Canada’s
payment of funds. Notwithstanding Article A.9.0 (Limitation of Liability and
Indemnity), the Province will not be liable for any direct, indirect, consequential,
exemplary, or punitive damages, regardless of the form of action, whether in
contract or in tort (including negligence) or otherwise, arising from any reduction
or cancellation of Funds. If any changes to the Agreement, including changes in
respect of the Project, are required as a result, the Parties agree to amend the
Agreement accordingly.

A.4.3 Use of Funds and Carry Out the Project. The Recipient will, in respect of the
Project, do all of the following:

()
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)

carry out the Project in accordance with the Agreement:
use the Funds only for the purpose of carrying out the Project;

spend the Funds only on Eligible Expenditures as described in Schedule “E”
(Eligible Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures);

not use the Funds to cover any Ineligible Expenditure; and

not use the Funds to cover any Eligible Expenditure that has or will be funded or
reimbursed by one or more of any third party, or ministry, department, agency, or
organization of the Government of Ontario or of the Government of Canada.

A.44 Interest-Bearing Account. If for any reason, Funds were provided to the Recipient
before the Recipient's immediate need for the Funds, the Recipient will place the
Funds in an interest-bearing account solely in the name of the Recipient at a branch of
a Canadian financial institution in Ontario. The Recipient will hold the Funds plus any
Interest Earned in trust for the Province until the Funds are used in accordance with
the Agreement.
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Interest. If the Recipient earns any interest on the Funds, the Province may do either
or both of the following:

(a) deduct an amount equal to the Interest Earned from the remaining Funds, if any;

(b) demand from the Recipient the payment of an amount equal to the Interest
Earned.

Maximum Funds and Recovery of Excesses. The Recipient acknowledges that:

(a) the Funds available to it pursuant to the Agreement will not exceed the Maximum
Funds;

(b) if Canada’s total contribution from all federal sources in respect of the Project
exceeds 40 percent of Total Eligible Expenditures, the Province may demand the
return of the excess from the Recipient and the Recipient shall return the excess
forthwith or the Province may reduce the remaining Funds under the Agreement
by an amount equal to the excess;

(c) if the Total Financial Assistance received in respect of the Project exceeds one
hundred percent (100%) of Total Eligible Expenditures, the Province, at its sole
discretion, may, up to the Maximum Funds, demand the return of the excess from
the Recipient and the Recipient shall return the excess forthwith or the Province
may reduce the remaining Funds under the Agreement by an amount equal to
the excess.

Disclosure of Other Financial Assistance. The Recipient will inform the Province
promptly of any financial assistance received in respect of the Project.

Rebates, Credits, and Refunds. The Province will, in respect of the Project, calculate
Funds based on the actual costs to the Recipient to carry out the Project, less any
costs (including taxes) for which the Recipient has received, will receive, or is eligible
to receive, a rebate, credit, or refund.

Recipient's Acknowledgement of Responsihility for Project. The Recipient will, in

respect of the Project, assume full responsibility for the Project, including, without

limitation:

(a) complete, diligent, and timely Project implementation within the costs and
timelines spedcified in the Agreement and in accordance with all other terms and
conditions of the Agreement;

(b) all of the costs of the Project, including, without limitation, unapproved
expenditures, Ineligible Expenditures, and cost overruns, if any;

(c) subsequent operation, maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, construction,
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demolition, or reconstruction, as required and in accordance with industry
standards, and any related costs for the full lifecycle of the Project; and

{(d) the engineering work being undertaken in accordance with industry standards.

A.4.10 Increase in Project Costs. If, at any time during the Term the Recipient determines

A4.11

A412

A.5.0

that it will not be possible to complete the Project unless it expends amotnts in excess
of all funding available to it (a “Shortfall”), the Recipient will immediately notify the
Province of that determination. !f the Recipient so notifies the Province, it will, within 30
days of a request from the Province, provide a summary of the measures that it
proposes to remedy the Shortfall. If the Province is not satisfied that the measures
proposed will be adequate to remedy the Shortfall, then the Province may exercise one
or more of the remedies available to it pursuant to section A.12.4 (Recipient Not
Remedying).

Recipient’s Request for Payment and Payment Procedures. The Recipient agrees
to submit its requests for payment in accordance with the payment procedures
provided for in Schedule “J” (Requests for Payment and Payment Procedures).

Retention of Contribution. The Province will retain 10% of the Maximum Funds in
respect of the Project ("Holdback”) up until the following conditions have been met:

(a) the Recipient has fulfilled all of its obligations under the Agreement for the
Project; and

(b) the Province has carried out the reconciliation, as set out in section J.6.1 (Final
Reconciliation and Adjustments), and has made any adjustments required in the
circumstances.

RECIPIENT'S ACQUISITION OF GOODS OR SERVICES, CONTRACT
PROVISIONS, AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

A.5.1  Acquisition. The Recipient will ensure that all Contracts are awarded in way that is:

Ab5.2

(a) is fair, transparent, competitive, and consistent with value for money principles, or
in a manner otherwise acceptable to the Province and Canada; and

(b) if applicable, is in accordance with the Canadian Free Trade Agreement and
international agreements.

Non-Compliance with Acquisition Requirements. If the Province or Canada
determines that a Contract is awarded in a manner that is not in compliance with the
requirements in section A.5.1 (Acquisition), upon giving Notice to the Recipient, the
Province may consider the expenditures associated with the Contract to be an
Ineligible Expenditure.
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Exemptions to Competitive Awarding. The Province and Canada may consent to
the provision of exemptions from competitive awarding of Contracts on a case-by-case
basis, in their sole and absolute discretion, if the Recipient:

(a) provides a written request indicating the business case rationale for the
exemption, in advance of the Contract being awarded;

(b) attests to:

(i) following value-for-money procurement processes for materials and sub-
contracts; and

(i) following its own policies and procedures.

Contract Provisions. The Recipient will ensure that all Contracts are consistent with
and incorporate the relevant provisions of the Agreement, including its insurance
provisions. More specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Recipient agrees to include provisions in all Contracts to ensure:

(a) that proper and accurate accounts and records are kept and maintained as
described in the Agreement including, but not limited to, in paragraph A.7.3(a);

(b) that all applicable Requirements of Law including, without limitation, labour and
human rights legislation, are complied with; and

(c) that the Contract secures the respective rights of the Province and Canada, and
any authorized representative or independent auditor identified by the Province or
Canada, and the Auditor General of Ontario and the Auditor General of Canada
to:

(i) inspect and audit the terms of any Contract, record or account in respect of
the Project; and '

(i) have free and timely access to the Project sites and facilities, and any
records, documentation or information, as contemplated pursuant to section
A.7.5 (Inspection and Removal).

Disposal of Assets. The Recipient will not, unless in accordance with the terms and

conditions set out in Schedule “H" (Disposal of Assets), sell, lease, encumber, or
otherwise dispose, directly or indirectly, of any Asset.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Confiict of Interest Includes. For the purposes of this Article A.6.0 (Conflict of
Interest), a conflict of interest includes any circumstances where:
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the Recipient or any person who has the capacity to influence the Recipient’s
decisions has outside commitments, relationships, or financial interests that
could, or could be seen by a reasonable person to interfere with the Recipient's
objective, unbiased, and impartial judgment in respect of the Project or the use of
the Funds, or both; or

a former public servant or public office holder to whom any post-employment,
ethics and conflict of interest legislation, guidelines, codes, or policies of Canada
apply will derive a direct benefit from the Agreement, unless the provision or
receipt of such benefits complies with such legislation, guidelines, policies, or
codes.

No Conflict of Interest. The Recipient will carry out the Project and use the Funds
without an actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest unless:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the Recipient:

(i)  provides Notice to the Province disclosing the details of the actual, potential,
or perceived confiict of interest; and

(i) requests the consent of the Province to carry out the Project with an actual,
potential, or perceived conflict of interest;

the Province consents in writing to the Recipient carrying out the Project with an
actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest: and

the Recipient complies with any terms and conditions the Province may prescribe
in its consent.

REPORTING, ACCOUNTING, AND REVIEW

Province and Canada Include. For the purpose of sections A.7.4 (Records Review),
A.7.5 (Inspection and Removal) and A.7.6 (Cooperation), “Province” includes Canada
and any auditor or representative that the Province or Canada, or both, may identify.

Preparation and Submission. The Recipient will:

(@)

submit to the Province at the address referred to in section A.15.1 (Notice in
Wiriting and Addressed):

() all Reports in accordance with the timelines and content requirements
provided for in Schedule “D” (Reports); and

(i) any other reports in accordance with any timelines and content
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requirements the Province may specify from time to time; and
{(b) ensure that all Reports and other reports are.
(i) completed to the satisfaction of the Province; and
(i) signed by an authorized signing officer of the Recipient.

Record Maintenance. The Recipient will keep and maintain for a period of seven
years after the Expiration Date:

(a) proper and accurate financial accounts and records, kept in a manner consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles, including but not limited to its
contracts, invoices, statements, receipts, and vouchers and any other evidence of
payment relating to the Funds or otherwise to the Project; and

(b) all non-financial records and documents relating to the Funds or otherwise to the
Project.

Records Review. The Province, at its sole discretion and expense, may, upon 24
hours’ Notice to the Recipient and during normal business hours, enter upon the
Recipient's premises to conduct an audit or investigation of the Recipient or the
Project regarding the Recipient’s compliance with the Agreement, including assessing
any of the following:

(a) the truth of any of the Recipient’s representations and warranties;

(b) the progress of the Project; or

(c) the Recipient's allocation and expenditure of the Funds.

Inspection and Removal. For the purposes of any Records Review, the Province
may take one or more of the foliowing actions:

(a) inspect and copy any records of documents referred to in section A.7.3 (Record
Maintenance);

(b) remove any copies the Province makes pursuant to section A.7.5(a); and

(c) share any documents, records and findings with Canada.

Cooperation. To assist the Province in respect of its rights provided for in section
A.7.5 (Inspection and Removal), the Recipient will cooperate with the Province by:

(a) ensuring that the Province has access to the records and documents wherever
they are located,;
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(b) coordinating access with any Third Party;
(c) assisting the Province to copy the records and documents;

(d) providing to the Province, in the form the Province specifies, any information the
Province identifies; and

(e) carrying out any other activities the Province requests.

No Control of Records. No provision of the Agreement will be construed so as to
give the Province or Canada, or both, any control whatsoever over the Recipient’s
records.

Auditor General {Ontario and Canada). The Province’s rights under this Article
A.7.0 (Reporting, Accounting, and Review) are in addition to any rights provided to the
Auditor General of Ontario pursuant to section 9.2 of the Auditor General Act (Ontario)
and to the Auditor General of Canada pursuant to section 7.1 of the Audifor General
Act (Canada).

Sharing of Audit Findings and Reports. The Recipient acknowledges that Canada
and the Province may:

(@) inform each other, and any of their respective authorized representatives and
auditors, that an audit is being conducted: and

(b) share the findings of any audit or investigation, including any ensuing report, with
each other and any of their respective authorized representatives and auditors.

Evaluation. The Recipient agrees to participate in any Evaluation and comply with the
requirements for such Evaluation that are set out in Schedule “F* (Evaluation).

Calculations. The Recipient will make alf calculations and prepare all financial data to
be submitted in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in effect
in Canada. These will include, without limitation, those principles and standards
approved or recommended from time to time by the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada or the Public Sector Accounting Board, as applicable, or any
successor institute, applied on a consistent basis.

Adverse Fact or Event. The Recipient will inform the Province immediately of any fact
or event of which it is aware that has or will compromise, wholly or in part, the Project.
COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS

Communications Protocol. The Parties agree to be bound by the terms and

conditions of the communications protocol provided for in Schedule “G”
(Communications Protocol).
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LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY

Province and Canada Limitation of Liability. In no event will any of the Indemnified
Parties be held liable for any damages, including direct, indirect, consequential,
exemplary, or punitive damages, regardiess of the form of action, whether in contract,
tort (including negligence), or otherwise, for:

(a) any injury to any Person, including, but not limited to, death, economic loss, or
infringement of rights;

(h) any damage to or loss or destruction of property of, any Person; or

(c) any obiligation of any Person, including, but not limited to, any obligation arising
from a loan, capital lease, or other long-term obligation

in relation to the Agreement, the Bilateral Agreement, or the Project.

Indemnification of the Province and Canada. The Recipient will indemnify and hold
harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against any Loss and any Proceeding
based upon or occasioned by:

(a) any injury to any Person, including, but not limited to, death, economic loss, or
any infringement of rights,

(b) any damage to, or loss or destruction of, property of any Person, or

(c) any obligation of any Person, including, but not limited to, any obligation arising
from a loan, capital lease, or other long-term obligation,

except to the extent to which such Loss or Proceeding is caused by the negligence or
wilful misconduct of any Indemnified Party in the performance of that Indemnified
Party's duties.

Recipient’s Participation. The Recipient will, at its expense, to the extent requested
by the Province or Canada, or both, participate in or conduct the defence of any
Proceeding against any of the indemnified Parties and any negotiations for their
settlement.

Province’s Election. The Province or Canada, or both, may elect to participate in, or
conduct the defence of, any Proceeding by providing Notice to the Recipient of such
election, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Province under the
Agreement or of the Province or Canada under the Bilateral Agreement, at law or in
equity. If the Province, Canada, or the Recipient, as applicable, participates in the
defence, it will do so by actively participating with the other's counsel.

Settlement Authority. The Recipient will not enter into a settlement of any
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Proceeding against any of the Indemnified Parties unless the Recipient has obtained
from the Province or Canada, as applicable, prior written approval or a waiver of this
requirement. If the Recipient is requested by the Province or Canada to participate in
or conduct the defence of any Proceeding, the Province or Canada, as applicable, wil
cooperate with and assist the Recipient to the fullest extent possible in the Proceeding
and any related settlement negotiations.

Recipient’s Cooperation. If the Province or Canada conducts the defence of any
Proceeding, the Recipient will cooperate with and assist the Province or Canada, as
applicable, to the fullest extent possible in the Proceeding and any related settlement
negotiations.

INSURANCE

Recipient’s Insurance. The Recipient represents, warrants, and covenants that it
has, and will maintain at its own cost and expense for a period extending at least 90
Business Days beyond the Term, with insurers having a secure A.M. Best rating of B+
or greater, or the equivalent, all the necessary and appropriate insurance that a
prudent person carrying out a project similar to the Project would maintain, including
commercial general liability insurance on an occurrence basis for third party bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage, to an inclusive limit of not less than
$2,000,000.00 per occurrence, and including products and completed operations
coverage with the endorsements identified below:

(a) the Indemnified Parties as additional insureds in respect of liability arising in the
course of performance of the Recipient's obligations under, or otherwise in
connection with, the Agreement:

(b) a cross-liability clause:

(c) contractual liability coverage; and

(d) a 30-day written notice of cancellation.

Proof of insurance. At the request of the Province from time to time, the Recipient
will:

(a) provide to the Province, either:

() annually, certificates of insurance that confirm the insurance coverage as
provided in section A.10.1 (Recipient’s Insurance); or

(ii)  other proof that confirms the insurance coverage as provided for in section
A.10.1 (Recipient’s Insurance); and
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(b) at the Province’s request, the Recipient will provide to the Province a copy of any
of the Recipient’s insurance policies that relate to the Project or otherwise to the
Agreement or both.

TERMINATION ON NOTICE

Termination on Notice. The Province may terminate the Agreement at any time
without liability, penalty, or costs upon giving at least 30 days’ Notice to the Recipient.

Consequences of Termination on Notice by the Province. If the Province
terminates the Agreement pursuant to section A.11.1 (Termination on Notice), the
Province may take one or more of the following actions:

(a) Direct the Recipient not to incur any further costs for the Project subsequent to
the Notice of termination. If the Recipient fails to comply with such direction and
unless with the Province’s prior written consent, the Recipient shall be solely
responsible for any further costs incurred after such Notice was given;

(b) cancel all further instalments of Funds; and

(c) demand the payment of any Funds plus any Interest Earned remaining in the
possession or under the control of the Recipient.

EVENT OF DEFAULT, CORRECTIVE ACTION, AND TERMINATION FOR

DEFAULT

Events of Default. It will constitute an Event of Defauit if, in the opinion of the

Province, the Recipient breaches any representation, warranty, covenant, or other

material term of the Agreement, including:

(a) failing to carry out the Projectin whole or in part in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement;

(b) failing to use or spend Funds in accordance with the terms of the Agreement;

(c) failing to provide, in accordance with section A.7.2 (Preparation and Submission),
Reports or such other reports as the Province may have requested pursuant {o
the Agreement);

(d) the Recipient’s operations, its financial condition, its organizational structure or its
control changes such that it no longer meets one or more of the eligibility
requirements of the program under which the Province provides the Funds;

(e) the Recipient makes an assignment, proposal, compromise, or arrangement for
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the benefit of creditors, or a creditor makes an application for an order adjudging
the Recipient bankrupt, or applies for the appointment of a receiver; or

() the Recipient ceases to operate.

Consequences of Events of Defauit and Corrective Action. If an Event of Default
occurs, the Province may, at any time, and at its sole discretion, take one or more of
the foliowing actions:

(@) initiate any action the Province considers necessary in order to facilitate the
successful continuation or completion of the Project;

{(b) provide the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default:

(c) suspend the payment of Funds for such period as the Province determines
appropriate;

(d) reduce the amount of the Funds:
(e) cancel all further instalments of Funds:

(§  demand from the Recipient the payment of any Funds plus any Interest Earned
remaining in the possession or under the control of the Recipient;

(9) demand from the Recipient the payment of an amount equal to any Funds the
Recipient used, but did not use in accordance with the Agreement;

(h) demand from the Recipient the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the
Province provided to the Recipient;

()  demand from the Recipient an amount equal to the costs the Province incurred or
incurs to enforce its rights under the Agreement, including the costs of any
Records Review and the costs it incurs to collect any amounts the Recipient
owes fo the Province; and

() terminate the Agreement at any time, including immediately, without liability,
penalty, or costs to the Province upon giving Notice to the Recipient.

Opportunity to Remedy. If, in accordance with paragraph A.12.2(h), the Province
provides the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default, the Province
will provide Notice to the Recipient of:

(a) the particulars of the Event of Default: and

(b) the Remedial Period.
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Recipient Not Remedying. If the Province provided the Recipient with an opportunity
to remedy the Event of Default pursuant to paragraph A.12.2(b), and:

(a) the Recipient does not remedy the Event of Default within the Remedia! Period,;

(b) it becomes apparent to the Province that the Recipient cannot completely remedy
the Event of Defauit within the Remedial Period; or

(c) the Recipient is not proceeding to remedy the Event of Default in a way that is
satisfactory to the Province,

the Province may extend the Remedial Period or initiate any one or more of the actions
provided for in paragraphs A.12.2(a), (c), (d), {e), (f). (@), (), (i) and (j).

When Termination Effective. Termination under this Article A.12.0 (Event of Defauilt,
Corrective Action, and Termination for Default) will take effect as provided for in the
Notice.

FUNDS UPON EXPIRY

Funds Upon Expiry. The Recipient will, upon expiry of the Agreement, pay to the
Province any Funds plus Inferest Earned remaining in its possession, under its
control, or both.

DEBT DUE AND PAYMENT

Payment of Overpayment. If at any time the Province provides Funds in excess of
the amount the Recipient is entitled to under the Agreement, the Province may:

(a) deduct an amount equal to the excess Funds plus any Interest Earned from any
further instalments of Funds; or

(b} demand that the Recipient pay to the Province an amount equal to the excess
Funds plus any Interest Earned.

Debt Due. If, pufsuant to the Agreement:

(a) the Province demands from the Recipient the payment of any Funds, an amount
equal to any Funds, or any other amounts owing under the Agreement; or

(b) the Recipient owes to the Province any Funds, an amount egual to any Funds, or
any other amounts under the Agreement, whether or not the Province has
demanded their payment,
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such amounts will be deemed to be debts due and owing to the Province by the
Recipient, and the Recipient will pay the amounts to the Province immediately, unless
the Province directs otherwise.

Interest Rate. The Province may charge the Recipient interest on any money owing

to the Province by the Recipient under the Agreement at the then-current interest rate
charged by the Province of Ontario on accounts receivable.

Payment of Money to Province. The Recipient will pay any money owing to the
Province by cheque payable to the “Ontario Minister of Finance” and delivered to the
Province at the address set out in Schedule “B” (Specific Information) for the purposes
of Notice to the Province.

Failure to Repay. Without limiting the application of section 43 of the Financial
Administration Act (Ontario), if the Recipient fails to pay any amount owing under the
Agreement, Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario may deduct any unpaid amount
from any money payable to the Recipient by Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario.
NOTICE

Notice in Writing and Addressed. Notice will be:

(a) inwriting;

(b) delivered by email, postage-prepaid mail, personal delivery, or courier: and

(c) addressed to the Province and the Recipient as set out in Schedule “B” (Specific
Information), or as either Party later designates to the other by Notice.

Notice Given. Notice will be deemed to have been given:

(@) in the case of postage-prepaid mail, five Business Days after the Notice is
delivered; and

(b) in the case of email, personal delivery, or courier, on the date on which the Notice
is delivered.

Postal Disruption. Despite paragraph A.15.2(a), in the event of a postal disruption:
(a) Notice by postage-prepaid mail will not be deemed to be given; and

(b} the Party giving Notice will provide Notice by email, personal delivery, or courier.
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CONSENT BY PROVINCE OR CANADA AND COMPLIANCE BY RECIPIENT

Consent. When the Province or Canada provides its consent pursuant to the
Agreement:

(a) it wili do so by Notice;

(b) it may attach any terms and conditions to the consent; and

{(c) the Recipient may rely on the consent only if the Recipient complies with any
tarms and conditions the Province or Canada may have attached to the consent.

SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS

Invalidity or Unenforceability of Any Provision. The invalidity or unenforceability of

any provision of the Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of any

other provision of the Agreement.

WAIVER

Waiver Request. Either Party may, by Notice, ask the other Party to waive an
obligation under the Agreement.

Waiver Applies. If in response to a request made pursuant to section A.18.1 (Waiver
Request) a Party consents to a waiver, the waiver will:

(a) be valid only if the Party that consents to the waiver provides the consent by
Notice; and -

(b) apply only to the specific obligation referred to in the waiver.

Waivers in Writing. If a Party fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, that
Party may only rely on a waiver of the other Party if the other Party has provided a
written waiver in accordance with the Notice provisions in Article A.15.0 (Notice). Any
waiver must refer to a specific failure to comply and will not have the effect of waiving
any subsequent failures to comply.

INDEPENDENT PARTIES

Parties Independent. The Recipient is not an agent, joint venturer, pariner, or
employee of either the Province or Canada, and the Recipient will not represent itself
in any way that might be taken by a reasonable person to suggest that it is, or take any
actions that could establish or imply such a relationship.
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No Authority to Represent. Nothing in the Agreement is to be construed as
authorizing any Person, including a Third Party, to contract for or to incur any
obligation on behalf of the Province or Canada, or both, or to act as an agent for the
Province or Canada. The Recipient will take the necessary action to ensure that any
Contract between the Recipient and a Third Party contains a provision to that effect.

ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT OR FUNDS

No Assighment. The Recipient will not, without the prior written consent of the
Province, assign any of its rights or obligations under the Agreement.

Agreement Binding. All rights and obligations contained in the Agreement will extend
to and be binding on:

(a) the Recipient's successors and permitted assigns; and

(b)  the successors to Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario.

GOVERNING LAW

Governing Law. The Agreement and the rights, obligations, and relations of the
Parties will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province
of Ontario and the applicable federal laws of Canada. Any actions or proceedings
arising in connection with the Agreement will be conducted in the courts of Ontario,
which will have exclusive jurisdiction over such proceedings.

FURTHER ASSURANCES

Agreement into Effect. The Recipient wil:

(@) provide such further assurances as the Province may request from time fo time in
respect fo any matter to which the Agreement pertains; and

(b) do or cause to be done all acts or things necessary to implement and carry into
effect the terms and conditions of the Agreement to their full extent.

JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

Joint and Several Liability. Where the Recipient is comprised of more than one

entity, each entity will be jointly and severally liable to the Province for the fulfillment of
the obligations of the Recipient under the Agreement.
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A.24.0 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE & JOINT AUTHORSHIP

A.241 Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Province under
the Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any of
its rights and remedies provided by law or in equity.

A.24.2 Joint Authorship Of Agreement. Each and every provision of this Agreement shall
be construed as though both Parties participated equally in the drafting of same, and
any rule of construction that a document shall be construed against the drafting party,
including without limitation, the doctrine commonly known as contra proferentem, shall
not be applicable to this Agreement. The Parties shall not seek to avoid a provision
herein because of its authorship through recourse to a third-party, court, tribunal or
arbitrator.

A.25.0 FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH OTHER AGREEMENTS
A.25.1 Other Agreements. If the Recipient:
(a) has failed to comply with any term, condition, or obligation under any other
agreement with Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario or one of Her agencies
(a “Failure”);

(b) has been provided with notice of such Failure in accordance with the
requirements of such other agreement;

(c) has, if applicable, failed to rectify such Failure in accordance with the
requirements of such other agreement; and

(d) such Failure is continuing,

the Province, at its sole discretion, may suspend the payment of Funds for such period
as the Province determines appropriate and may demand immediate repayment or
deduct such amounts owing plus any Interest Earned from the remaining Funds, if any,
as a result of such Failure.

A.26.0 SURVIVAL

A.26.1 Survival. Any rights and obligations of the Parties that, by their nature, extend beyond
the termination of the Agreement will continue in full force and effect for a period of
seven years from the date of expiry or termination of the Agreement. Surviving
provisions include, without limitation, the following Articles, sections and paragraphs,
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and all applicable cross-referenced Articles, sections, paragraphs, schedules, and sub-
schedules: Articles 1.0 (Entire Agreement), 2.0 (Conflict or Inconsistency), 5.1
(Acknowledgement from Recipient), 6.0 (Canada’s Rights and Information Sharing with
Canada), A.1.0 (Interpretation and Definitions) and any other applicable definitions,
A.2.0 (Representations, Warranties, and Covenants), A. 4.1(c), A.4.2(c), sections A.4.4
(Interest-Bearing Account), A.4.5 (Interest), A.4.6 (Maximum Funds and Recovery of
Excesses), A.4.8 (Rebates, Credits, and Refunds), A.4.9 (Recipient’s
Acknowledgement of Responsibility for Project), A.5.5 (Disposal of Assets), A.7.1
(Province and Canada Include), A.7.2 (Preparation and Submission) (to the extent that
the Recipient has not provided the Reports or other reports as may have been
requested to the satisfaction of the Province), A.7.3 (Record Maintenance), A.7.4
(Records Review), A.7.5 (Inspection and Removal), A.7.6 (Cooperation), A.7.7 (No
Control of Records), A.7.8 (Auditor General (Ontario and Canada)), A.7.9 (Sharing of
Audit Findings and Reports), A.7.10 (Evaluation), A.7.11 (Calculations), Articles A.8.0
(Communications Requirements), A.9.0 (Limitation of Liability and Indemnity), A.10.1
(for a period extending 90 Business Days beyond the Term), sections A.11.2
(Consequences of Termination on Notice by the Province), A.12.1 (Events of Default),
paragraphs A.12.2(d), (e), (), (g), (h) and (i), A.13.0 (Funds Upon Expiry), A.14.0 (Debt
Due and Payment), A.15.0 (Notice), and A.17.0 (Severability of Provisions), section
A.20.2 (Agreement Binding), and Articles A.21.0 (Governing Law), A.23.0 (Joint and
Several Liability), A.24.0 (Rights and Remedies Cumulative & Joint Authorship), A.26.0
(Survival), A.27.0 (Environmental Requirements and Assessments), A.28.0 (Aboriginal
Consultation), and A.31.0 (Special Conditions).

A.27.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS AND ASSESSMENTS

A.27.1 Federal Environmental Requirements. Without limitation to the Recipient's
obligations to comply with Environmental Laws and for greater clarity:

(@) no site preparation, removal of vegetation or construction will occur in respect of
the Project; and

(b) the Province will have no obligation to pay any Eligible Expenditures that are
capital costs, as determined by the Province, until Canada is satisfied that federal
requirements are met, and continue to be met, under the following:

(i) Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012 or the Impact Assessment
Act,

(i) otherapplicable environmental assessment legislation that is or may come
into force during the term of the Agreement; and

(iii) other applicable agreements between Canada and Aboriginal Communities.
A.27.2 Assessments. The Recipient will complete the assessments that are further

described in Schedule "D” (Reports).
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A.28.0 ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION

A.281

A.28.2

A.28.3

A.29.0

A.29.1

A.29.2

Aboriginal Consultation Protocol. The Parties agree to be bound by the terms and
conditions of the Aboriginal Consultation Protocol provided for in Schedule “I”
(Aboriginal Consultation Protocol).

Legal Duty to Consult. Until Canada and, if applicable, the Province are satisfied that
any legal duty to consult and, where appropriate, to accommodate Aboriginal
Communities, or any other federal consultation requirement, has been, and continues
fo be met:

(a) no site preparation, removal of vegetation or construction will occur in respect of
the Project; and

(b) despite section A.4.1, the Province has no obligation to pay any Eligible
Expenditures that are capital costs, as determined by the Province and Canada;
and, for the Project requiring consultation, Canada and, if applicable, the
Province must be satisfied that:

()  Aboriginal Communities have been notified and, if applicable, consulted;

(i) where consultation has occurred, the Recipient has provided a summary of
consultation or engagement activities, including a list of Aboriginal
Communities consulted, concerns raised, and how each of the concerns
have been addressed or, if not addressed, an explanation as to why not;

(i) the Recipient is carrying out accommodation measures, where appropriate;
and

(iv) any other information has been provided which Canada or the Province, or
both, may deem appropriate.

Funding Conditional upon Meeting Aboriginal Consultation Obligations. No
Funds will be provided to the Recipient under the Agreement unless Canada and, if
applicable in the opinion of the Province, the Province are satisfied that their
respective obligations have been met in respect of the legal duty to consult and, if
applicable, accommodate any Aboriginal Community.

COMMITTEE

Establishment of Committee. The Province may, at its sole discretion, require the
establishment of a committee to oversee the Agreement (the “Committee”).

Notice of Establishment of Committee. Upon Notice from the Province, the Parties
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will hold an initial meeting to establish, in accordance with Schedule “K” {Committee),
the Committee described in section A.29.1 (Establishment of Committee).

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Contentious Issues. The Parties will keep each other informed of any issues that
could be contentious.

Examination by the Committee and Parties. If a contentious issue arises and a
Committee has been established under section A.29.1 (Establishment of Committee),
the Parties will refer the contentious issue that may arise to the Committee for
examination. [n the absence of a Committee, the Parties will examine the contentious
issue,

Potential Dispute Resolution by Committee. The Committee or the Parties, as the
case may be, will attempt, reasonably and in good faith, to resolve disputes as soon

as possible and, in any event, within, for the Committee, 30 days, or, for the Parties,

90 days of receiving Notice of a contentious issue.

Dispute Resolution by the Parties. If the Committee cannot agree on a resolution,
the matter will be referred to the Parties for resolution. The Parties wili provide a
decision within 60 Business Days of the Notice.

Alternative Mechanisms for Dispute Resolutions. Where the Parties cannot agree
on a resolution, the Parties may use any alternative dispute resolution mechanisms
available to them to resolve the issue.

Suspension of Payments. The Province may suspend any payments related to any
contentious issue or dispute raised by either Party, together with the obligations
related to such issue, pending resolution.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Special Conditions. The Province’s funding under the Agreement is conditional upon,

(@) on or before the Effective Date, the Recipient having provided the Province with,
to the Province’s satisfaction:

() any and all compliance attestations the Transfer Payment Ontario System if
directed by the Province;

(i} evidence that the Recipient is in compliance with all provincial and federal
tax laws, if directed by the Province:
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(i) banking information, such as a void cheque or a bank letter, for an interest-
bearing account in the name of the Recipient at a Canadian financial
institution, into which the Province may transfer funds electronically; and

(iv) any other Reports requested by the Province in the format specified.

(b) prior to submitting a request for payment in respect of the Project under the
Agreement if required by the Province,

() the Recipient having provided to the satisfaction of the Province with
written confirmation that:

a. the Recipient is in compliance with all Environmental Laws, including
the Recipient’s obligations under section A.27.1 (Federal Environmental
Requirements), and has obtained all necessary approvals and permits;

b. the Recipient has met any requirements under Article A.28.0 (Aboriginal
Consuitation) that may apply to the Project; and

¢. the Recipient has the necessary ownership of any real property
required for the completion of the Project; and

(i) the Recipient having provided fo the satisfaction of the Province with any
required assessments pursuant fo Article A.27.0 (Environmental
Requirements and Assessments); and

(c) where the Recipient is a municipality, the Recipient having submitted to the
satisfaction of the Province, in a form and at an address supplied by the
Province, an asset management self-assessment on or before the Effective Date,
and, thereafter on or before a date provided by the Province, until the Project
reaches Substantial Completion.

For greater certainty, if the Province provides any Funds to the Recipient before the
conditions set out in this Article A.31.0 (Special Conditions) have been met, and
unless the Province has waived compliance with such condition in writing, the
Province may exercise one or more of the remedies available to it pursuant to section
A.12.2 (Consequences of Event of Default and Cotrective Action).

END OF GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

[SCHEDULE “B” — SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “B”
SPECIFIC INFORMATION

B.1.1 Expiration date. The Expiration Date is March 31, 2028.

B.2.0 MAXIMUM FUNDS

B.2.1 Maximum Funds. Maximum Funds means the sum of Canada’s Maximum Contribution
and Ontario’s Maximum Contribution.

B.3.0 ADDRESSEES

B.3.1 Addressees. All Reports and Notices under the Agreement will be submitted to the
Province at the address listed below:

Contact information for the
purposes of Notice to the
Province

Address:

Ministry of Infrastructure

Infrastructure Program Delivery Branch
1 Stone Road West, 4NW

Guelph, Ontario N1G 4Y2

Attention: Manager, Infrastructure Renewal
Programs

Email: ICIPGreen@ontario.ca
Contact information for the | Address: The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
purposes of Notice to the 250 Clark Street,
Recipient Powassan, Ontario
POH1Z20
Attention: Director of Public Works & Engineering
Email: cmunshaw@powassan.net

[SCHEDULE “C” - PROJECT DESCRIPTION, FINANCIAL INFORMATION, TIMELINES
AND PROJECT STANDARDS FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “C”
PROJECT DESCRIPTION, FINANCIAL INFORMATION, TIMELINES AND PROJECT
STANDARDS

C.1.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project will rehabilitate sections of watermain in Powassan. The work will involve
removing and replacing approximately 370 metres of watermain, eight gate valves and
three fire hydrants on Queens Avenue between Valley View Dr. East and the south end
of Queens Avenue.

C.2.0 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

C.2.1 Total Eligible Expenditures. Total Eligible Expenditures means $756,700.00, rounded
to two decimal places.

C.2.2 Ontario’s Maximum Contribution. Ontario’s Maximum Contribution means
$252.,208.11, rounded to two decimal places, towards the Total Eligible Expenditures of
the Project.

C.2.3 Canada’s Maximum Contribution. Canada’s Maximum Contribution means
$302,680.00, rounded to two decimal places, towards the Total Eligible Expenditures of
the Project.

C.2.4 Percentage of Provincial Support. Percentage of Provincial Support means 33.33%,
rounded to two decimal places, towards the Total Eligible Expenditures of the Project.

C.2.5 Percentage of Federal Support. Percentage of Federal Support 40.00%, rounded to
two decimal places, towards the Total Eligible Expenditures of the Project.
C.3.0 TIMELINES

C.3.1 Federal Approval Date. Federal Approval Date means March 02, 2022.

C.4.0 PROJECT STANDARDS

C.4.1 Canada’s Requirements for Standards. In addition to any other standards that the
Recipient must meet or exceed for the Project, the Recipient will ensure the Project
meets or exceeds the following:

(a}  any applicable energy efficiency standards for buildings outlined in Canada’s
pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change provided by
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Canada at www.canada.ca/en/services/environment/weather/climatechanae/pan-
canadian-framework.html, or at any other location the Province may provide; and

(b)  the accessibility requirements of the highest accessibility standards published in
Ontario, in addition to accessibility requirements in applicable provincial building
codes and relevant municipal by-laws,

C.5.0 CHANGES TO THE PROJECT DESCRIPTION, FINANCIAL INFORMATION,
TIMELINES, AND PROJECT STANDARDS

C.5.1 Province's and Canada’s Consent. Any change to the Project will require the
Province's and Canada’s consent. When seeking to make a change in respect of the
Project, the Recipient will submit updated Project information and any other information
that the Province or Canada, or both, may require to the satisfaction of Canada and the
Province.

[SCHEDULE “D” - REPORTS FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “D”
REPORTS

D.1.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

D.1.1 Reports. The Recipient will submit all Reports to the Province in a manner, format,
at such dates and with such content, as may be prescribed by the Province from time
to time, at its sole discretion, prior to its required submission by the Province. Without
limitation and at the sole discretion of the Province, Reports will include the following:

(@) Initial Report. The Initial Report will provide the Recipient’s forecast of the
timelines and costs (expenditure forecast) to completion. It aiso outlines the
sources of Recipient funds and confirms other information regarding the
Project.

(b) Progress Reports. Progress Reports include an update on the Project’s
status. Progress Reports will be submitted by the Recipient no less
frequently than twice a year on dates provided by the Province.

(c) Claim Reports. Claim Reports will detail amounts that are being claimed for
reimbursement. Claim Reports may be submitted by the Recipient as
frequently as needed, but no less frequently than twice a year (if Eligible
Expenditures have been incurred). If no Eligible Expenditures have been
incurred in the previous six months, the Recipient will notify the Province that
no Claim Report is being submitted for that period. When submitting a Claim
Report, the report must include a detailed breakdown of invoices that are
being ciaimed for reimbursement. Note that copies of invoices and any
associated backup information must be provided at the time of claim
submission, as directed by the Province.

(d)  Final Report. The Final Report shall summarize the Project’s final timelines,
costs, and outcomes. It will include a declaration of Substantial Completion.

The Final Report will be submitted to the Province within sixty (60) Business
Days of Substantial Completion or December 31, 2026, whichever is earlier.

(e) Other Reports. Any other reports that the Province so directs on or before
such date and with such content as the Province requests.
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ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION RECORD

Inclusion of Aboriginal Consultation Record. The Recipient will include an
updated Aboriginal Consultation Record, if consultation with any Aboriginal
Community is required, in its Progress Report.

RISK ASSESSMENT

Further Details on Risk Assessment. Upon the Province’s written request and
within the timelines set out by the Province, the Recipient will provide further details
on the risk assessment in respect of the Project.

COMPLIANCE AUDIT(S)

Compliance Audit(s). Without limiting the generality of section A.7.4 (Records
Review), if requested by the Province from time to time, which request shall be at
the Province’s sole discretion, the Recipient, at its own expense, will forthwith retain
an independent third party auditor to conduct one or more compliance audits of the
Recipient or the Project. The audit will be conducted in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, as adopted by the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants, applicable as of the date on which a record is kept or
required to be kept under such standards. In addition, the audit will assess the
Recipient’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement and will address, without
limitation, the following:

(@)  whether the Funds were spent in accordance with the Agreement and with
due regard to economy, efficiency, and effectiveness;

(b)  the Project’s progress or state of completion;

(c)  whether the financial information the Recipient provided is complete,
accurate, and timely, and in accordance with the Agreement:

(d)  whether the Recipient's information and monitoring processes and systems
are adequate to identify, capture, validate, and monitor the achievement of
intended benefits of the Project;

() the overall management and administration of the Project;

H recommendations for improvement or redress; and

(@  whether prompt and timely corrective action is taken on prior audit findings.

[SCHEDULE “E” - ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES AND INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “E”
ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES AND INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

E.1.0 ELIG!IBLE EXPENDITURES

E.1.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein the Agreement, Eligible
Expenditures shall only include those direct costs that are considered, in the
Province's and Canada’s sole and absolute discretion, to be directly necessary for
the successful completion of the Project, and must be properly and reasonably
incurred and paid to an arm’s length party as evidenced by invoices, receipts or
other records that are satisfactory to the Province and Canada, in their sole and
absolute discretion, and that are associated with the acquisition, planning,
environmental assessments, design and engineering, project management,
materials and construction or renovation of the Project. Eligible Expenditures
exclude costs set out as Ineligible Expenditures in section E.2.1 below, but may
include:

a) The incremental costs of the Recipient's staff or employees provided that:

i The Recipient is able to demonstrate that it is not economically
feasible to tender a Contract that ensures the acquisition of the
required goods or services at the best value for money; and

ii. The arrangement is approved in advance in writing by the Province
and Canada.

b) Any costs that are determined by the Province and Canada, in their sole
discretion, to be Eligible Expenditures; and
c) Notwithstanding section E.2.1(a) of this Schedule, expenditures related to the

Project assaciated with completing climate lens assessments or associated

with Aboriginal consultation and engagement activities, if applicable, that

were incurred after February 15, 2018.

E.2.0 INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

E.2.1 Without limiting the discretion of Province and Canada in section £.1.1, the
following costs are Ineligible Expenditures and are therefore ineligible to be paid
from the Funds:

a) Costs incurred prior to the Federal Approval Date;

b) Costs incurred after October 31, 2026;

c) All expenditures related to Contracts signed prior to the Federal Approval
Date,

d) Costs incurred for terminated or cancelied Projects;

e) Costs related to developing a business case or proposal or application for
funding;

f) Costs associated with the acquisition, expropriation or leasing of:
i Land,
fi. Buildings, or
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iii. Other facilities

Costs associated with the acquisition or leasing of equipment other than
equipment directly related to the construction, improvement, repair,
rehabilitation or reconstruction of the Project where the Province has not
provided its prior written approval:

Costs that have not been claimed for reimbursement by March 31st of the
year following the year in which the costs were incurred;

Capital costs, including site preparation and construction costs, until Canada
and if applicable the Province have confirmed in writing that environmental
assessment and Aboriginal consultation obligations have been fully met and
continue to be fully met;

Costs related to any component of the Project other than its approved scope;
Real estate fees and related costs;

Costs incurred for the general operation, repair and regularly scheduled
maintenance of the Project:

Services or works normally provided by the Recipient, incurred in the course
of implementation of the Project, except those specified as Eligible
Expenditures;

Expenditures related to any goods and services which are received through
donations or in-kind contributions:

Any overhead costs, including salaries and other employment benefits of any
employees of the Recipient, its direct or indirect operating or administrative
costs, and more specifically its costs related to planning, engineering,
architecture, supervision, management and other activities normally carried
out by its staff, except in accordance with the list of Eligible Expenditures
above;

Unreasonable meal, hospitality or incidental costs or expenses of any Third
Party;

Any amount for which the Recipient has received, will receive or is eligible to
receive, a rebate, credit or refund, in full or in part;

Taxes of any kind;

Costs of relocating entire communities;

In the Province’s sole discretion, the costs of communication activities
undertaken by the Recipient that did not conform with the requirements of the
Communications Protocol in Schedule “G”;

Any amounts incurred or paid by the Recipient to an entity that is not at arm’s
length from the Recipient, except in accordance with the list of Eligible
Expenditures above;

Costs incurred contrary to Article 5 of Schedule “A” (Recipient's Acquisition
of Goods or Services, Contract Provisions, and Disposal of Assets) of this
Agreement;

The costs, charges, penalties or fees incurred or paid by the Recipient in the
process of having a cost determined to be an Ineligible Expenditure.

Legal fees, financing charges and foan interest payments, including those
related to easements (e.g., surveys);

If the Project meets an adaptation, resilience and disaster mitigation outcome
costs associated with:
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(i) relocating whole communities;
(i) emergency seivices infrastructure; or
(ii.) addressing seismic risks; and

z)  Costs of furishings and non-fixed assets which are not essential for the
operation of the funded Asset or Project, as well as all costs associated with
moveable assets or rolling stock.

[SCHEDULE “F” - EVALUATION FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “F”
EVALUATION

F.1.0 PROJECT AND ICIP EVALUATIONS

F.1.1 Recipient’s Participation in Project and ICIP Evaluations. The Recipient
understands that the Province or Canada, or both, may ask the Recipient to
participate in one or more evaluation in respect of the Project or the ICIP during and
for a period of up to six years after March 31, 2028. The Recipient agrees, if asked
and at its own expense, to provide Project-related information to the Province or
Canada, or both, for any evaluation.

F.1.2 Results of Project and ICIP Evaluations. The result of any evaluation carried
under section F.1.1 (Recipient’s Participation in Project and ICIP Evaluations) will

be made available to the public, subject to all applicable laws and policy
requirements.

(SCHEDULE “G” — COMMUNICATIONS PROTOCOL FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “G"
COMMUNICATIONS PROTOCOL

DEFINITIONS
Definitions. For the purposes of this Schedule “G” (Communications Protocol):

«Joint Communications” means events, news releases, and signage that relate
to the Agreement or the Bilateral Agreement, or both, that are not operational in
nature, and that are collaboratively developed and approved by,

(a) in the case of the Bilateral Agreement, Canada, the Province and the
Recipient; and

(b) in the case of the Agreement, the Province and the Recipient.

PURPOSE

Purpose. This communications protocol outlines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the Parties to the Agreement in respect of Communications Activities
related to the Project.

Guidance. This communications protocol wili guide all planning, development and
implementation of Communications Activities with a view to ensuring efficient,
structured, continuous, consistent, and coordinated communications to the
Canadian public.

Application to Communications Activities. The provisions of this
communications protocol apply to all Communications Activities related to the
Agreement and the Project.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Information to Canadians. Communications Activities undertaken through this
communications protocol should ensure that Canadians are informed about the
Project’s benefits, including the ways in which the Project helps improve their
quality of life.

Factors to Consider. The scale and scope of Communications Activities
undertaken for any Project will take into consideration the financial value, scope
and duration of the Project and the feasibility of Joint Communications for such
Communications Activities.
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Deficiencies and Corrective Actions. The Province will communicate to the
Recipient any deficiencies or corrective actions, or both, identified by the
Province, Canada or, as applicable, the Committee.

Approval of Communications Material. The announcement or publication of
the Project must be approved by the Parties and Canada prior to being carried
out.

Costs of Communication Activities. With the exception of advertising
campaigns outlined in Article G.10.0 (Advertising Campaigns), the costs of
Communication Activities and signage will follow the eligibility rules established in
Schedule “E” (Eligible Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures).

JOINT COMMUNICATIONS

Subject Matter. The Parties and Canada may have Joint Communications about
the funding and status of the Project.

Prior Knowledge and Agreement. Joint Communications in respect of the
Project should not occur without the prior knowledge and agreement of the Parties
and Canada.

Recognition of the Province’s and Canada’s Contributions. All Joint
Communications material must be approved by the Province and Canada and will
recognize the Province’s and Canada’s contribution or the Total Financial
Assistance, or both, received in respect of the Project.

Notice and Timing. The Recipient and the Province, on its own behalf or that of
Canada, may request Joint Communications. The Party requesting the Joint
Communications will provide at least 15 Business Days’ notice to the other Party.
If the Communications Activity is an event, it will take place at a date and location
mutually agreed to by the Parties and, if applicable, Canada.

Participation and Representatives. The Party requesting a Joint
Communications will provide the opportunity for the other Party and Canada to
choose to participate and, if they do so choose, their own designated
representative (in the case of an event).

English and French. Canada has an obligation to communicate in English and
French. Communications products related to events must be bilingual and include
the Canada word mark and the logos of the Parties. In such cases, Canada will
provide the translation services and final approval on products.

Table of Precedence for Canada. The conduct of all Joint Communications will,
as applicable, follow the Table of Precedence for Canada provided by Canada at
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https://www.canada.calen/canadian—heritaqelserviceslprotocol—quide!ines-speciaf—
event/table-precedence-canada.html, or at any other location as the Province may
provide.

INDIVIDUAL COMMUNICATIONS

Canada’s Obligations. Notwithstanding Article G.4.0 (Joint Communications), the
Parties agree that Canada or the Province, or both, have the right to communicate
information to Canadians and Ontarians about the Agreement and the use of
Funds to meet its legislated and regulatory obligations through their respective
own Communications Activities.

Restrictions. Each Party may include general ICIP messaging and an overview
in respect of the Project in their own Communications Activities. The Province and
the Recipient will not unreasonably restrict the use of, for their own purposes,
Communications Activities related to the Project and, if the communications are
web- or social-media based, the ability to link to it. Canada has also agreed, in the
Bilateral Agreement, to the above.

Publication. The Recipient will indicate, in respect of the Project-related
publications, whether written, oral, or visual, that the views expressed in the
publication are the views of the Recipient and do not necessarily reflect those of
Canada and the Province.

Canada’s Recognition in Documents. In respect of the Project where the
deliverable is a document, such as but not limited to plans, reports, studies,
strategies, training material, webinars, and workshops, the Recipient will clearly
recognize Canada’s and the Province’s respective financial contribution for the
Project.

Acknowledgement of Support. Unless the Province directs the Recipient to do
otherwise, the Recipient will, in respect of the Project-related publications, whether
written, oral, or visual, acknowledge the Province's and Canada’s support for the
Project.

OPERATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS

Responsibility of Recipient. The Recipient is solely responsible for operational
communications in respect of the Project, including but not limited to calls for
tender, contract awards, and construction and public safety notices. Operational
communications as described above are not subject to the Official Languages Act
of Canada.
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MEDIA RELATIONS

Significant Media inquiry. The Province and the Recipient will share information
promptly with the other Party and Canada if significant media inquiries are
received or emerging media or stakeholder issues arise in respect of a Project or
the ICIP.

SIGNAGE

Recognition of Funding Contribution. The Parties agree that Canada, the
Province and the Recipient may each have sighage recognizing their funding
contribution in respect of the Project.

Funding Recognition. Unless otherwise agreed by Canada or the Province, or
both, the Recipient will produce and install a sign to recognize the funding
contributed by the Province or Canada, or both, at the Project site in accordance
with, as applicable, their current respective signage guidelines. Federal sign
design, content, and installation guidelines will be provided by Canada. Provincial
sign design, content, and installation guidelines will be provided by the Province.

Permanent Plaque. Where the Recipient decides to install a permanent plaque or
another suitable marker in respect of the Project, the Recipient will:

(@)  on the marker, recognize the Province’s and Canada’s contributions; and

(b)  prior to installing the marker, seek the prior written approval of both Canada
and the Province, each respectively, for its content and installation.

Notice of Sign Installation. The Recipient will inform the Province of sign
instaliations, including providing the Province with photographs of the sign, once
the sign has been installed.

Timing for Erection of Sign. If erected, signage recognizing Canada’s and the
Province’s respective contributions will be installed at the Project site(s) and be
visible for the duration of the Project. The Province will provide Notice to the
Recipient specifying the timelines for signage installation and removal and the
Recipient will comply with such timelines specified in the Notice.

‘Size of Sign. If erected, signage recognizing Canada’s and the Province’s

respective contribution will be at least equivalent in size and prominence to
Project signage for contributions by other orders of government and will be
installed in a prominent and visible location that takes into consideration
pedestrian and traffic safety and visibility.

Responsibility of Recipient. The Recipient is responsible for the production and
installation of Project signage, and for maintaining the signage in a good state of
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repair during the Project, or as otherwise agreed upon.

G.9.0 COMMUNICATING WITH RECIPIENT

G.9.1 Facilitation of Communications. The Province agrees to facilifate, as required,
communications between Canada and the Recipient for Communications
Activities.

G.10.0 ADVERTISING CAMPAIGNS

G.10.1 Notice of Advertising Campaigns. Recognizing that advertising can be an
effective means of communicating with the public, the Recipient agrees that
Canada or the Province, or both, may, at their own cost, organize an advertising
or public information campaign in respect of the Project or the Agreement.
However, such a campaign will respect the provisions of the Agreement. In the
event of such a campaign, Canada or the Province will inform each other and the
Recipient of its intention no less than 21 Business Days prior to the campaign
launch.

[SCHEDULE “H” — DISPOSAL OF ASSETS FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “H”
DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

DEFINITIONS
Definitions. For the purposes of this Schedule “H” (Disposal of Assets):

“Asset Disposal Period” means the period commencing on the Effective Date and
ending five (5) years after the Expiration Date.

DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Asset Disposal Period. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Province, the Recipient
will maintain the ongoing operations and retain title to and ownership of any Asset
acquired in respect of the Project for the Asset Disposal Period.

Disposal of Asset and Payment. If, at any time within the Asset Disposal Period,
the Recipient sells, leases, encumbers, or otherwise disposes, directly or indirectly,
of any Asset other than to Canada, the Province, or a municipal or regional
government established by or under provincial statute, the Province may require the
Recipient to reimburse the Province or Canada, via the Province, for any Funds
received for the Project.

[SCHEDULE “I” — ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION PROTOCOL FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “I”
ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION PROTOCOL

DEFINITIONS
Definitions. For the purposes of this Schedule “1" (Aboriginal Consultation Protocol):

“Aboriginal Community”, also known as “Aboriginal Group”, includes First Nation,
Métis, and Inuit communities or peoples of Canada.

“Aboriginal Consuitation Plan” means the Aboriginal Consultation Plan described
in section 1.2.1 (Development of Plan).

ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION PLAN

Development of Plan. The Province, based on the scope and nature of the Project
or at the request of Canada, may require the Recipient, in consultation with the
Province or Canada, or both, to develop and comply with an Aboriginal consultation
plan (“Aboriginal Consuitation Plan”).

Procedural Aspects of Aboriginal Consultation. If consultation with Aboriginal
Communities is required, the Recipient agrees that:

(@) the Province or Canada, or both, may delegate certain procedural aspects of
the consultation to the Recipient; and

(b) the Province or Canada, or both, will provide the Recipient with an initial list of
the Aboriginal Communities the Recipient will consult.

Provision of Plan to Province. If, pursuant to section 1.2.1 (Development of Plan),
the Province provides Notice to the Recipient that an Aboriginal Consultation Plan is
required, the Recipient will, within the timelines provided in the Notice, provide the
Province with a copy of the Aboriginal Consultation Plan.

Changes to Plan. The Recipient agrees that the Province or Canada, in the sole
discretion of the Province or Canada and from time to time, may require the
Recipient to make changes to the Aboriginal Consultation Plan.

ABORIGINAL CONSULTATION RECORD

Requirements for Aboriginal Consultation Record. If consultation with an
Aboriginal Community is required, the Recipient will maintain an Aboriginal
Consultation Record and provide such record to the Province, and any update to it,
as part of its reporting to the Province pursuant to section D.3.1 (Inclusion of
Aboriginal Consultation Record).
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE RECIPIENT

Notification to and Direction from the Province. The Recipient will immediately
notify the Province: :

(a)  of contact by Aboriginal Communities regarding the Project; or

(b)  of any Aboriginal archaeological resources that are discovered in relation to
the Project,

and, in either case, the Recipient agrees that the Province or Canada, or both, may
direct the Recipient to take such actions as the Province or Canada, or both, may
require. The Recipient will comply with the Province's or Canada’s direction.

Direction from the Province and Contracts. In any Contract, the Recipient

will provide for the Recipient's right and ability to respond to direction from the
Province or Canada, or both, as the Province or Canada may provide in accordance
with section 1.4.1 (Notification to and Direction from the Province).

[SCHEDULE “J” - REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “J”
REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

DEFINITION

Definition. For the purposes of this Schedule “J” (Requests for Payment and
Payment Procedures):

“Final Payment” means the final payment by the Province to the Recipient in
respect of the Project as described in and to be paid in accordance with Article J.8.0
(Final Payment).

PROCEDURES AND TIMING FOR REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT

Procedures. The procedures provided for in Article J.3.0 of this Schedule “J"
(Procedures for Requests for Payment for Eligible Expenditures) will apply to
requests for payment that the Recipient submits to the Province under the
Agreement,

Diligent and Timely Manner. The Recipient will submit its requests for payment for
Eligible Expenditures in respect of the Project to the Province in a diligent and
timely manner, and no less frequently than twice a year if Eligible Expenditures
have been incurred. If no Eligible Expenditures have been incurred in the previous
six months, the recipient will notify the Province that no claim is being submitted for
that period.

PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT FOR ELIGIBLE
EXPENDITURES

Timing, Reports and Documents. The Recipient will submit each request for
payment for Eligible Expenditures in respect of the Project to the Province on a date
and frequency as indicated in Schedule “D” (Reports) and, if the Province so
requested pursuant to paragraph K.4.1(f), after review by the Committee. The
Recipient agrees to submit, for each of the circumstances listed below, the following
reports and documents:

(a) for each request for payment, including the final payment, a Claim Report in
a format prescribed by the Province, including invoices, statements, receipts,
and vouchers and any other evidence of payment relating to the Funds or
otherwise to the Project;

(b) for each request for final payment, a Final Report, in a format prescribed by
the Province, acceptable to the Province; and

(c) such other information as the Province may request.
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PAYMENTS OF FUNDS

Payment by the Province. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement,
upon receipt of a request for payment fully completed in accordance with this
Schedule “J” (Requests for Payment and Payment Procedures), the Province will
use its reasonable efforts to pay Funds to the Recipient based on the Recipient's
incurred and paid Eligible Expenditures up to the Maximum Funds, if due and owing
under the terms of the Agreement. Claims will be reimbursed based on the
Percentage of Provincial Support and the Percentage of Federal Support as set out
in Schedule “C”.

For greater certainty and without limitation, before the Province makes a payment to
the Recipient, the following terms and conditions of the Agreement must be met, in
the opinion of the Province or Canada, or both:

(a)  the conditions set out in paragraph A.4.2(c) of Schedule A"

(b)  the special conditions listed in Article A.31.0 of Schedule “A” (Special
Conditions);

(c) receipt and acceptance by the Province of all required Reports and other
reports, as applicable;

(d)  compliance with all applicable audit requirements under the Agreement; and

(e)  applicable communications requirements, as set out Schedule *G”
(Communications Protocol).

The Province will under no circumstances be liable for interest for failure to make a
payment within the time limit provided for in this Article J.4.0 (Payments).

TIME LIMITS FOR REQUESTS FOR PAYMENTS

Timing. The Recipient will submit all requests for payment on or before December
31, 2026.

No Obligation for Payment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the

Province will have no obligation to make any payment for a request for payment

submitted after

(i.) December 31, 2026; or

(ii) March 31st of the year following the Funding Year in which the Eligible
Expenditures were incurred.
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FINAL RECONCILIATION AND ADJUSTMENTS

Final Reconciliation and Adjustments. For the Project, following the submission
of the Final Report, which will include a declaration of Substantial Completion, the
Province may carry out a final reconciliation of all requests for payments and
payments in respect of the Project and make any adjustments required in the
circumstances.

HOLDBACK

Holdback. For the Project, the Province may hold back funding in accordance with
section A.4.12 (Retention of Contribution).

FINAL PAYMENT

Final Payment. Subject to paragraph A.4.2(c) of Schedule “A”, the Province will
pay to the Recipient the remainder of the Funds under the Agreement, including the

Holdback, after all of the conditions under section A.4.12 of Schedule “A” (Retention
of Contribution) have been met.

[SCHEDULE “K"” — COMMITTEE FOLLOWS]
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SCHEDULE “K”
COMMITTEE

ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEE

Establishment and Term of Committee. If the Province requires the
establishment of a Committee to oversee the Agreement, pursuant to section A.29.1
(Establishment of Committee), the Parties will, within 80 days of the Province
providing Notice, hold an initial meeting to establish the Committee. The
Committee’s mandate will expire on the Expiration Date of the Agreement.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS, CO-CHAIRS, AND OBSERVERS

Appointments by the Province. The Province will appoint two persons as
members of the Committee.

Appointments by the Recipient. The Recipient will appoint two persons as
members of the Committee.

Chairs of the Committee. The Committee will be headed by co-chairs chosen from
its members, one appointed by the Province and one appointed by the Recipient. If
a co-chair is absent or otherwise unable to act, the member of the Committee duly
authorized in writing by the Province or the Recipient, as applicable, will replace him
or her and will act as co-chair in his or her place.

Non-committee Member Staff. The Parties may invite any of their staff to
participate in Committee meetings. The Province may invite up to two
representatives from Canada to sit as observers on the Committee. For greater
certainty, the staff and representative(s) from Canada will not be considered
members and will not be allowed to vote.

MEETINGS AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Rules of Committee. The Committee will:

(@)  meet at least two times a year, and at other times af the request of a co-
chair; and

(b) keep minutes of meetings approved and signed by the co-chairs as a true
record of the Committee meetings.

Quorum. A quorum for a meeting of the Committee will exist only when both co-
chairs are present.
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K.4.0 COMMITTEE MANDATE

K.4.1 Mandate. Provided that no action taken by the Committee will conflict with the rights
of the Parties under the Agreement, the mandate of the Commiittee will include, but
not be limited to:

K4.2

K.5.0

K.5.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)

monitoring the implementation of the Agreement including, without limitation,
the implementation of Schedule “G” (Communications Protocol), for
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement;

acting as a forum to resolve potential issues or disputes and address
concerns;

reviewing and, as necessary, recommending to the Parties amendments to
the Agreement;

approving and ensuring audit plans are carried out as per the Agreement;
establishing sub-committees as needed,

at the request of the Province, reviewing requests for payments; and
attending to any other function required by the Agreement, including

monitoring project risk and mitigation measures, or as mutually directed by
the Parties.

Committee Decisions. Decisions of the Committee will be made as follows:

(a)
(b)

the co-chairs will be the only voting members on the Committee; and

decisions of the Committee must be unanimous and recorded in writing.

ROLE OF THE RECIPIENT

Requirements. The Recipient undertakes to fulfill, in addition to any other
requirements provided for in this Schedule “K” (Committee), the following:

(a)

(b)

establish a fixed location where the Agreement will be managed, and
maintain it until the expiry of the Committee’s mandate and, if relocation is
required, establish a new location;

prepare and retain, at the location described in paragraph K.5.1(a), and
make available to the Committee, all documents needed for the work of the
Committee, including payment request forms, approval documents,
contracts, and agendas and minutes of meetings of the Commitiee and its
subcommittees;
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(c) ensure that any audit required of the Recipient pursuant to the Agreement is
carried out and the results are reported to the Committee:

(d)  ensure that administrative and financial systems are developed and
implemented for the Project and the work of the Commiittee:

(e)  promptly inform the Committee of all proposed changes in respect of the
Project; and

" provide the Committee, as requested and within the timelines set by the
Committee, and to the Committee’s satisfaction, project status information
refated to Schedule “D" (Reports).
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